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Our Vision

“We will expand upon our commitment to ensure
our people ‘The Sun Come-Up Mob’, continue
to have access to equitable and culturally
appropriate primary health care services into the
future. We will build the capacity of each of our
communities to enable a health care service that
delivers programs for and by Aboriginal people,
and to ensure local problems are addressed
through local sustainable solutions. We will
incorporate ‘The Sunrise Way’ philosophy into
how we do business and how we deliver services
and focus on the concept of Mind, Body and

Spirit to address health issues at the community

level”. (SHSAC Vision)
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Geographical Location

Barunga, Manyallaluk (Eva Valley), Wugularr (Beswick), Bulman The region covers communities in a

300km radius of the Katherine East
Region of the Northern Territory.

& Weemol (Central Arnhem Highway); Jilkminggan, Minyerri,
Ngukurr & Urapunga (Roper Highway); Mataranka (Stuart

Highway); and surrounding communities and outstations.
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Demographics

As at 30th June 2020

"

Population by age and gender

e

0 -14 years old 15 - 54 years old 55+ years old
Total 1,003 Total 1,902 Total 245
Population by gender Population by age

. 0-14 years
. 15-54 years

55+ years
My

TOTAL POPULATION = 3,150 TOTAL POPULATION = 3,150
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Chairperson’s Report

This financial year has been a year of hard work by the
Board, with high demands being made of each Director
in COVID-19 and biosecurity zone lockdown issues in
each community.

The Sunrise Health Service Aboriginal Corporation
Board of Directors met five times during the year,
holding meetings at CDU Campus Katherine, Flying
Fox Station and at Katherine, with the Annual General
Meeting being held in November 2019 at Godinymayin
Yijard Rivers Arts & Culture Centre.

The Top Road Elections were held in October 2019 and
at the November AGM we were unable to fill the elected
position for Bulman, as Ms Christine Curtis moved to
and was elected as the representative for Wugularr,
and Ms Keisha Avalon resigned at the AGM (but later

reappointed back into her former position).

The Board thanks the Executive Management team, for
their tireless effort and performance under very difficult
circumstances. The Board also recognises that this work,
plus the threat of COVID-19 has not come without its
costs — placing more demands on each manager, leaving
key positions unfilled and having insufficient support
staff to function effectively.

Both the CEO and | spent considerable time in meetings
with funding bodies, peak industry bodies, and
Government agencies to ensure the ongoing viability

of the organisation and the best possible service
arrangements for our communities.

The Board and | have facilitated meetings in
communities whenever there has been a need to address
issues that have arisen in communities — particularly
around COVID-19. After several instances where
communities have been affected by the failings of
Government policy, it is clear that Sunrise Health

must meld the social determinants of health into
primary health care —whether there is an appetite by
Government to address them or not. For too long health
care has been in isolation to the factors that undermine
health and wellbeing such as overcrowding, poor water
and sewerage and in most cases a complete shortage of
housing — Ngukurr, Minyerri and Mataranka to name a
few.
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It became very clear during the biosecurity zone
lockdown that Australia’s welfare payments were
insufficient as the two rounds of additional payments
were quickly spent on food - leading to a shortage

of supplies in the remote stores. What we saw was a
marked improvement in both the physical and mental
health of people in our communities — not cabin fever —
which was what we were expecting.

We can see that the current pool of Remote Area
Nurses is both diminishing and ageing and unless we
create a career pathway for local Aboriginal people to
achieve these same qualifications, we will be looking
at a major shortage of appropriately qualified nursing
staff — the situation is not helped by there being no
nursing training in the NT. The organisation is engaging
with stakeholders both Commonwealth and Territory
to develop an integrated and comprehensive career
pathway from driver to doctor including an on-job
training for the Batchelor of Nursing.

Our greatest operational impediment is still the lack

of accommodation for nursing, allied health and
Aboriginal Health Practitioner staff. The lack of housing
is having a significant impact on the delivery of primary
health care in communities particularly in the area of
maternal, family and community services support.

I look forward to continuing to work with the Board,
the Executive staff and the communities to address our
health needs - both acute and social — and invite all of
our stakeholders to join us in this journey!

R o b g
Anne-Marie Lee
Chairperson

Sunrise Health Service Board of Directors
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Executive Directors

Chairperson: Deputy Chairperson: Treasurer: Secretary:
Anne-Marie Lee Peter Lindsay Michelle Farrell Timothy Baker
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Joaquin Huddleston
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Christine Curtis Maijella Friel
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Executive Summary

Sunrise Health Service Aboriginal Corporation
has had an interesting year, it started out as my
first year as CEO working with the Executive team
and the Board on a new strategic plan, enhancing
our relationships with funding bodies to provide
integrated client service and then along came

COVID-19.

The entire Executive team has been engaged in
COVID-19 planning responses since the outbreak

in late February working tirelessly to ensure that our
communities are safe, informed, and the appropriate
response mechanisms have been developed if there
ever was an outbreak in one of our communities.

It also included scouring the country for personal
protection equipment to keep our staff safe. Thanks
to the Assets team we now have a chilled warehouse
devoted to emergency PPE in the event of an

outbreak.

Special thanks to Dr Tanya Davies, and Dr Ahmed
Latif who have put in hours and hours of work
developing COVID-19 Pandemic Plans and reviewing
our public health responses as our understanding of
and the spread of the virus grew.

Once again, | am proud to report that the projected
profit for this year is a reality. The profit still comes
at a cost and that cost is our inability to fund key
positions that support the skills development of staff,
and improvement in the quality of service delivery.
The Executive Management team and all staff are to
be congratulated for delivering outstanding results
under very difficult circumstances — results that are

still ahead of the pack despite our limitations and
COVID-19 constraints.

Once again, the Board is to be congratulated for the
professional manner in which it has engaged with
community to address these challenging issues as
well as its commitment to identifying and addressing
health priorities in the community they represent. As

a Board they have demanded a greater transparency
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and understanding of the organisation’s viability and
operations, and | have enjoyed working with them to
have Sunrise Health Service empower the health of

their communities in a culturally safe and competent

manner.

Staff costs and recruitment costs are the most
significant part of the Sunrise budget and thus the
greatest threat to viability unless appropriately
constrained. To this end we implemented a ground-
breaking enterprise agreement that fixes costs but
rewards staff who stay with us permanently right

across the workforce.

It is becoming increasingly clear that unless we are
growing a workforce from within our communities
there will be a significant shortage of clinical staff
within the next 5-10 years.

We have been developing a workforce development
strategy to provide a career pathway, with training
and mentoring, from casual driver to doctor with the
focus on growing a health skill-base in Aboriginal

people in our communities.

We are still working towards a more equitable
funding model. We have had a win in that the
Australian Department of Health is increasing our
revenue every year for the next three years, whilst
some other Aboriginal Community Controlled

Organisations received no increase.

Despite the inequity, which severely constrains our
operations, we are still delivering 5 out of the 13
National Health Implementation Plan 2023 targets
and are consistently delivering above Territory and
National averages in Key Performance Indicators

as well. However, the challenges expressed in our
population health report would indicate that we have
reached our maximum capability unless we are able

to employ additional clinical and support staff.

The integrity of our data is intensely managed and

data on each community and its comparison to




National or Territory averages is presented at each
Board meeting and prioritised by each community’s
Director. Subsequent action plans by clinics and
population health ensure that any priority health

issues are addressed at the community level.

Without addressing the social determinants of
Indigenous health and wellbeing, it will be near
impossible to deliver the full National Health

Implementation Plan targets. The Board supports

this view and has appointed an operational Director

to develop community-based strategies to address
these social determinants that impact community
health and wellbeing in conjunction with other

agencies.

Our new strategic plan, promotes greater workforce

development and a family centric primary health
care delivery model and is consistent with the The
Sunrise Way — a benchmark document written

ten years ago defining the ideal service delivery/
community engagement model of health reform in

remote communities.

Sunrise Health Service is grateful for the

support and partnership of the Commonwealth
and Territory Health Departments, the
Commonwealth Department of Social Services,
the Northern Territory Primary Health Network, the
Commonwealth National Indigenous Australians
Agency, the Northern Territory General Practice
Education unit, and AMSANT.

Sunrise Health Services will continue to expand

its community engagement in both primary and
public health care delivery as well as addressing the
social determinants of health through its Board and
through its Community Health Committees.

Mr Bill Palmer
CEO

Executive Managers (2019-2020)

Mr Bill Palmer
Chief Executive Officer

Ms Michelle Mason
Director, Primary Health Care

Dr Tanya Davies
Director, Public Health & Planning

Ms Clare Murray
Director, Strategy & Development

Mr George Marin

Director, Finance & Business Operations

Mr Steve Brown
Assets Manager
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Public Health and Planning

The 2019- 2020 presented additional challenges through the impact of COVID-19 on the delivery of

services to the people of the Sunrise region.

General Practioners:

Despite only having two long-term General
Practitioners (GPs) in the team, Sunrise has been
lucky to have a group of GP locums who have been
willing to give long-term services to our communities
for most of the year including the COVID lockdown
period. The group have been very helpful in not only
providing individual care to clients but have also
contributed to our internal systems such as clinical

audits and best practice recommendations.

Clinical Governance and Clinical Case Reviews:

The Clinical Governance Group has been meeting
regularly most of this year. It has addressed issues
to do with Communicare (poTient record sysTem) to
facilitate best practice by clinicians. It has also focused

on systems issues, both organisational and policies.

We have also added monthly Clinical Case Reviews
where a group of clinician’s review cases — either ones
that have been raised through the clinical, incident or

complaints processes, or random case reviews.

COVID-19:

As with all other Health Services in the country,
Sunrise has been grappling with how to respond to
the COVID-19 pandemic. We have had no COVID
community transmission in the NT so far, which has
allowed Sunrise time to prepare forwhenitdoes. There
was a period of ‘lock-down’ in our communities in
April/May/June 2020, with a Biosecurity Zone around
our remote communities. It was a very stressful time,
with ever-changing rules about what type and how
many different permits our staff were required to have

so they could provide services into the Zone. This was
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in addition to the separate permits that were required
to get into the closed NT border. We had to be a bit

creative about how we used our GPs in quarantine.

During that time, our remote clinics have developed
their COVID emergency plans, while those of usin the
Katherine office have been advocating for broader
support if/when COVID arrives in our communities.
The NT Government has now released its plan and
we are reviewing how we will operate with that in

place.

Population Health team:

The year 2019-2020 has been one of positive change
for the Population Health team with it embedding
‘The Sunrise Way’ into its practises. We have spent
time reviewing our current services and moving to
having a more communalvision and avariety of goals.
This incorporates the 16 different funding streams
which have very different outcomes to report on. We
are focusing on outcomes based on The Sunrise Way
and Board priorities for the Population Health team,
balanced with the government agendas. But at the

same time still achieving the aims of the funding.

Main Issues to address:
Review the aims of the Population Health team
in lines with what Sunrise priorities are rather
than funding body priorities.
Re-structure of the Population Health team to
make it more efficient and collaborative and
a more supportive environment for the team
members.
The Sunrise Way: Bring the team more in
line with The Sunrise Way. That includes
employment as well as recruitment for clinical
staff and work-readiness.
Amalgamate  three separate  streams/
programs with Health Promotion Community
Based Workers (CBWs).
A flexible use of various program funding
streams that don’t have enough funding for

one clinician or allied health role.
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Increase local community support for the Allied

Health team members.

Coordination of service delivery with the health
care provided by the clinics.

Improve Health Literacy in the communities.

The 16 funding streams/programs for the

Population Health team are:
A.NTPHN:
MHSRRA - Mental Health
SEWB - Social Emotional Wellbeing
MOICD - Outreach Allied Health
ITC - Chronic Disease ITC program
RPHS - Flexible around Allied Health and

Health Promotion
LIMH - Low Intensity Mental Health (one year
from 1st July 2020)

B.NTG
Child Health
Remote AOD
Sexual Health and BBV
MECSH - Maternal Home Visiting Service

C.IAHP - NIAA
Syphilis
Rheumatic Fever

Tobacco
AOD (NIAA)

D. NDIS (Disability - Ngukurr only)

E. IFSS (finished]une 2020)




The Population Health team will focus on improving

health outcomes and the client experience. This will
be achieved by strengthening community engagement
and improving health literacy. An increase in activities
across the communities will improve engagement
and client satisfaction. The combination of a family
focused clinical plan with health promotion activities

will empower clients to take charge of their health.

New Organisational Chart (August 2020)

The success of the new service delivery model will be
evaluated with the aim of establishing a decrease in
risk factors across community. Sunrise is committed to
increasing its indigenous community based workforce
which will ensure more community participation
and that all activities and services are delivered in a

culturally safe way.

Director Public Health and Planning

Population Heatlh team

Remote GPs (4)
GP Registrars 1)

Data Integrity | Communicare

and Medicare | Administrator

NDIS
Manager
NDIS
Cos

NDIS

Compliance

Social

Peer Support
Workers (4)

MECSH Program

Manager

Workers (2)

Health Promotion Outreach

Manager Manager

MOICD

+ Cardiac
Educator

Health

Promotion

Health

Promotion

+ Child Health

+ Women’s Health
» Men’s Health

+ Sexual Health

* Mental Health
Social Worker
* Mental Health
Social Worker

« Diabetes
Educator

Supervisor Trainer

Health Health + Podiatry

Promotion | Promotion
team

Leader

Health
Promotion
team
Leader

+ Exercise

team

Leader Physiology

« Dietician
+ Chronic Disease
Coordinator

With the addition of new staff, the Population Health team has been reinvigorated. Plans
are being implemented to ensure better coordination of service delivery by the teams. The
new service delivery model will be focused on family focused health care and a social and

emotional wellbeing model is being developed.
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Health Promotion team

Restructure:

During the 2019-2020 year the SHSAC Health
Promotion team underwent a considerable restructure.
The Alcohol and Other Drugs (AOD) and Tobacco
(TIS) team and the Health Promotion team combined
in February 2020 creating one Health Promotion team
covering a more comprehensive, holistic portfolio.
SHSAC Health Promotion team priority areas now
include AOD/TIS, Rheumatic Heart Disease, Sexual
Health, Mental Health (Social and Emotional
Wellbeing). The new structure fits well with the SHSAC
strategic direction and commitment to Holistic Health
Promotion and Care and the Strategic Goals of the

Sunrise Board encompassing ‘Mind - Body - Spirit’.

The structure of the Health Promotion team currently

includes:

Health Promotion Manager
Health Promotion Supervisor
3 team Leaders

11 Community Based Workers
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We are also planning a recruitment drive in Beswick
& Bulman throughout September and October to
increase our Community Based Worker numbers to

fifteen across our 9 communities.

Health Promotion in Community:

As well as concentrating on our priority health areas,
COVID-19 awareness and education has been a focus
for our team as this was and continues to be a priority
for SHSAC and its footprint. The restrictions placed
upon staff regarding travel into Community during
this time have been quite stressful for our remote staff.
The COVID-19 restrictions regarding social distancing
and other COVID-19 measures have unfortunately
meant that any large events or projects planned during
the past 6 months had to be cancelled for the safety of

Community members.

Our team continued to support our Communities as
best they could under the circumstances by conducting
visits throughout Communities explaining the risks

associated with drugs, smoking and drinking and how




to prevent the spread of COVID-19 by not sharing cigarettes and
drinks. We also focussed on the importance of hand hygiene,
social and emotional wellbeing and self-care during these trying
and unprecedented times. Head office staff ensured a constant
supply of health promotion resources to our remote staff. Our
Community Based Workers also developed appropriate resources
which highlighted health messages around COVID-19 as well
as concentrating on our health priority areas. Many of these

resources were translated into Kriol for dissemination.

Our team also worked closely with SHSAC Dietitian to distribute
food hampers to vulnerable community members during the bio-
security restrictions. Partnerships were developed with Foodbank
NT and the MECSH program manager, to organise and deliver
the food hampers for all MECSH program participants.

Professional Development:

Our commitment to professional development has been evident
throughout the past 6 months. Despite the travel restrictions
associated with COVID-19 we continued to provide our staff with

elLearns and resources to initiate self-learning during this time.

SHSAC engaged an external consultant trainer/educator in
March who fortunately was able to travel to Ngukurr just prior
to the COVID-19 bio-security zone restrictions coming into force.
This enabled her to stay within the bio-security zones and work
with some of our team to deliver leadership development, life skills
and presentation skills. Our educator also helped our Community
Based Workers deliver COVID-19 awareness messages in

community thereby developing their presentation skills further.

Just prior to the COVID-19 restrictions, 5 Community Based
Workers, 1 team Leader and SHSAC AOD Manager completed
Aboriginal Mental Health First Aid Training in Katherine. The
remainder of our Health Promotion team completed this training

in July 2020.

SHSAC are committed to investing in our Health Promotion staff,
prioritising education and training, and improving self-efficacy
and empowerment. The next six months see an intensive period of
training for our team. SHSAC Aboriginal Health Practitioners and
external educators have been engaged to work with our team in

external settings as well as mentoring in community.
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Planning and Development:

In June 2020 our team Leaders, Administrative
Assistant and the Program Manager participated in
a strategic planning day conducted by an external
consultant. This event focused on strategies to help
improve communication between our team Leaders
and their team and improve capacity ensuring
thorough planning of upcoming events in line with
Health Promotion theory and frameworks. Working
closely alongside our Community Based Workers our
team Leaders have begun community consultation
for all upcoming programs and events creating a
strong relationship with our communities. Thorough
community consultation will help ensure delivery of
events and support services that are specific to each

location.

Data Integrity:

In May/June of 2020 SHSAC Health Promotion
Manager, Administrative Support Coordinator and
Data Integrity Coordinator completed an audit and

review of the current reporting templates being utilised
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in Communicare (PIRS) by SHSAC Community Based
Workers. As a result of this review some templates
were amended or integrated with other templates, this
now allows staff to not only more accurately report on
services provided, buttoinclude a more comprehensive,
holistic, approach to health and wellbeing services
in line with SHSAC the “Sunrise Way”. The Sunrise
Way expands the concept of holistic health care from
comprehensive and coordinated to bio-psychosocial
“Mind, Body, Spirit, Healing Families Together’ and
underpins the SHSAC’s Quality Statement. Harm
minimisation strategies and ‘Stages of Change’ Model
were integrated into the templates to improve service
delivery and ensure referral processes are robust.
This also ensures our staff are supporting community
members along the stages of change and helps to

strengthen harm minimisation practices.

Dietician:
While it has been a challenging and unexpected time

due to the COVID-19 pandemic with the lockdown of

all remote communities, important connections have




been made with stakeholders such as Foodbank NT, the
Banatjarl Strongbala Wimun Group and Foodladder.
Responding to the Food Security issues when the
Biosecurity Zone was established, Sunrise worked with
Foodbank NT and the MECSH program manager,
to organise and deliver food hampers for all MECSH
program participants. The Sunrise Board recognised
that while it has been a tough time for all community
members, expecting mothers and mothers with newborn

babies have been particularly vulnerable.

With the roads open again, visits to all communities and
clinic managers provided the opportunity to identify the
level of need and priority so as to establish a longer 3-6
month plan to engage the communities to adopt healthy

lifestyles.

The National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS):

The NDIS program’s aim for this year was to demonstrate
that it is a viable program which delivers culturally safe,
quality services. Thanks to the hard work of the entire
NDIS team, the program has succeeded in achieving this

goal.

At the community level the program has consolidated
its reputation as a provider of culturally secure, quality
services. Several milestones deserve amention. In the first
3 months of 2020, the program finalised the recruitment
of 20 local cultural carers for each participant who
deliver home based care. The selection process was led
by the participants with support of the local team. This
strength-based approach empowered the participants
and provided much needed local employment. At the
same time the NDIA finalised funding for its Remote
Community Connector (RCC) Program that seeks to
employ community members to support the roll out of
the NDIS. The RCCs recently attended their first training

session in Katherine.

Our program’s innovative model is strengthened by its
culturally safe services. We are very privileged to have
such a strong local team made up of community leaders,
Daniel Wilfred is a
song man who travels the world sharing his songs with

advocates and cultural brokers.

other First Nations People. Angelina Joshua is an active

advocate for the preservation of Indigenous languages,
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jointly producing documentaries for SBS and ABC.
Together Daniel, Ange, Glenda Robertson and Angelo
Manggurra design and deliver our services while
walking alongside the participants. Our participants
increased social and emotional well being is evidence

of the hard work of the local team.

Our service delivery model is respected and supported
by the local community. It has been shared with the
Commonwealth Department of Health, the local
NDIS office and the NDIA in Darwin. We have been
inundated with requests for interviews with our
participants and team and with requests to visit our

program.

In]July thisyear the program hosted Bill Palmer, our CEO
and Dan English, the NDIA Territory Manager. The
local team and the participants designed the schedule
and over 3 days they led the activities. Highlights
included an evening performance by Daniel Wilfred,
supported by his didgeridoo player and dancers on the
banks of Yellow Water and a bush trip to Wuyagiba,
the site of the Macquarie University bush hub, to meet
the Elders and Traditional Owners and to fish and feast

in the ocean and estuary.
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Dan’s appreciation of our approach is evident in his
feedback:

“I'd like to thank Sunrise Health Services, Bill Palmer and
the Sunrise team for hosting me in Ngukurr. It was such
a pleasure to spend some time with our participants and
the Sunrise team, and to learn more about the extensive
range of services Sunrise provide. Service providers,
like Sunrise, who are exploring opportunities to extend
culturally appropriate services for participants are vital,
not just for the success of the NDIS, but more importantly
for the contribution towards improving the lives of people
in remote communities. The engagement of participants
as part of the Remote Community Connector program
was wonderful to witness and presents purposeful and
meaningful work for participants in Ngukurr. Over time,
Sunrise’s Remote Community Connectors will become
an integral part of how the NDIS engages with Ngukurr

and the surrounding communities.”




MECSH - Maternal Early Childhood Sustained
Home-visiting program:

Maternal Early Childhood Sustained Home-visiting
(MECSH) is a nurse-led structured program for
families who would benefit from additional support
and improve outcomes for those at risk. MECSH is a
licenced program, developed in Australia and has
three guiding principles: 1. a core program that allows
local adaptation, 2. building parents’ capacity and 3.
embeds a health promotion orientation (as opposed to

illness treating).

Mothers are supported through pregnancy with a
focus on improving maternal health and the health

and development of the child.

The program can only be delivered by MECSH-trained
nurses within a universal child, family and community
service system. The postnatal component focusses
primarily on increasing parents’ capacities to parent
effectively and support their child’s development.
Delivery is tailored to the mother through individual,
group activities and/or community links to facilitate
parent networking. All women who are pregnant

or have a baby up to eight weeks discharged from

hospital, can enrol in the MECSH Program. MECSH is
voluntary and verbal consent is required to participate
although mothers can withdraw from the program at
any stage. While the program starts with a pregnancy
or new baby, it focuses on the whole family and the
number of participating family members increases

once the mother gives birth.

MECSH Staffing ratio is 3 Registered Nurses (RNs)
and 1 Social Care Practitioner to 100 clients (a Social
Care Practitioner can be either a Registered Aboriginal
Health Practitioner or a Social Worker) The case load

of one RN to 33 clients over the 3 years.

The program has now been operating at Sunrise
Health Service since 2008. At present Sunrise Health
Service has one MECSH Nurse working at Wugularr
who due todemand s currently exceeding her case load
numbers. Therefore, Sunrise has employed another
Nurse to assist with the high demands of antenatal and
new-born. Sunrise is recruiting for a MESCH Manager
and another MESCH Nurse. At present that Program
is running at Wugularr with the aim to extend it to

Bulman, Barunga and then in the near future, Ngukurr.
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Sexual Health Blood Borne Virus

Men’s and Women’s Health:

There has been continuous screening and treatment
for Blood Borne Viruses (BBV) throughout the Sunrise
Health Service Aboriginal communities in this financial
year. By utilising Communicare data systems to capture
data, recalls are completed by our Sunrise Health
staff. This includes our Aboriginal Health Practitioners
and our Registered Nurses. The health assessments
are completed by our GP’s At the same time the GP’s
review whether there are any other health issues that

require attention or further assessments.

Sunrise Slogan: Be Safe, Have a Health Check:

The graph below shows the increase of the spread of

Syphilis throughout Australia

The Australian Government has committed $21.2
million over four years (2017-18 to 2020-21) to fund
an augmented health workforce and point-of-care

testing in targeted Aboriginal Community Controlled

msA WA BT ok

Cutbreak commenoed W

Cruthe eak commenoed MT
Dutbreak commaenced Cld

2015

Health Services (ACCHS) within the affected outbreak
regions. The funding also includes the development
and dissemination of a multi-strategy Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander community awareness, education

and testing campaign for syphilis and other STI/BBV.

Sexual Health BBV education and promotion:
Controlled Health

Organisations are integral to the rollout of the

Community

Aboriginal

campaign, maximising community engagement
by working with community partners in remote
communities, such as youth organisations and

Aboriginal community councils.

Aboriginal health services are being encouraged to
promote STl testing at every opportunity — including
adult health check days, adolescent health days and
as part of antenatal testing. SAHMRI is working with
participating Aboriginal health services as well as other

primary health services to provide outreach activities

Crulthe eak commenced 54

Year and month
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to profile the Young Deadly Syphilis Free campaign in
efforts to encourage young people to test for syphilis
and other STls, and to upscale the use of syphilis point

of care tests (on-site rapid tests).

Point Of Care Testing (POCT):

There is an ongoing outbreak of infectious syphilis
affecting young Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
people, predominately aged between 15 and 29 years,

living in northern, central and southern Australia.

The use of POC testing and a ‘test and treat’ model
reduces time to initiating treatment and contact
tracing, minimises individuals lost to follow-up and
provides access to testing for those unwilling or unable
to have venepuncture performed. The Determine
Syphilis TP™ test is currently the only syphilis POC test
registered by the Therapeutic Goods Administration in
Australia and has been selected for use in the outbreak

response.

Consistent with best practice guidelines for POC
testing in Australia, an optimised training and quality
management framework has been developed and
implemented by the Flinders University International
Centre of Point-of-Care Testing to support POC
testing as part of the outbreak response.

Nineteen ACCHS are funded under the phased
approach. Phase 1 commenced from 1 August 2018
at ACCHS in Townsville, Cairns and Darwin; Phase 2
commenced from 10 October 2018 at ACCHS in East
Arnhem Land (NT), the Katherine Region (NT), and
in the Kimberley; and Phase 3 commenced from 4
April 2019 at ACCHS in Western Arnhem Land (NT);
Western, Eyre, Far North and Adelaide regions of SA;
and the Pilbara and Western Kimberley Regions of WA.
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Chronic Disease:

Chronic diseases are highly prevalent amongst the
adult population base in Sunrise Health Services
communities. The total population of our communities
is 3150; this is made up of 1497 males and 1653
females. Of these are 1003 children aged less than 15

years.
Chronic Conditions Recorded
Diabetes
Chronic Kidney Disease
COPD
Asthma
Mental Health
Cardiovascular Disease
Rheumatic Heart Disease
Cerebrovascular Accident

Hypertension

The commonest conditions diagnosed were chronic
kidney disease in 18%, hypertension in 12% and
diabetesin 11%. This high burden of disease is reflected
in the high workload of clinic staff.

The problem of co-morbidity is also very large. Of all
the patients with chronic disease only 716 had one
chronic condition, while 323 had 2 chronic conditions,
189 had 3 chronic conditions and a further 92 had
4 chronic conditions diagnosed. A combination of
diabetes, chronic kidney disease, cardiovascular
disease and chronic respiratory disease occurred
frequently among our community members. The

tables and graphs displayed show these findings.
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During the course of the year it was noted that a
diagnosis of one or more chronic diseases was made
in 1204 males and 1457 females. Some of the patients
had more than one chronic disease diagnosed. The
table below shows the number of patients that had

chronic disease.

Females Males % of total population

Many chronic conditions are preventable, and an
important initiative of Sunrise Health Service is to
target risk factors associated with chronic disease at
the population level. Modifiable risk factors include
smoking, unsafe alcohol consumption, unhealthy
nutrition, consumption of sugared drinks and lack of
physical activity. These we target as a population-

based approach.

We also aim to prevent the development of
complications of chronic disease by providing early
effective treatment, ensuring treatment compliance
and ensuring regular follow up checks and developing

and adhering to chronic disease care plans.




The Sunrise Approach to Prevention and
Management of Chronic Disease:
The Sunrise Health Service approach to the prevention

and management of chronic diseases is multi-pronged.

1. Primary Prevention

Population health based primary prevention activities
are carried out on aregular basis. Activities with school-
aged children are carried out regularly to promote
physical activity, healthy nutrition, healthy homes and
healthy personal hygiene. For older school children
preventing ingestion of alcohol and other drugs and
preventing smoking programs are also initiated.
Primary prevention activities are also conducted for

the adult population as well.

We encourage regular health checksininfants, children

adolescents as well as in adults.

2. Early Detection

Provision of health services at our Community Health
Centres is evidence-based and we promote good
health care seeking behaviour for all. By having regular
health checks the diagnosis of a chronic condition
is made early and adequate management and care
advise is provided in order to prevent the development

of complications of chronic disease.

3. Effective Management

Sunrise Health Service follows evidence-based

management guidelines for the management of
persons with chronic disease. The CARPA Manual
forms the basis of our management approach.
However, compliance with treatment is crucial if
any form of control is to be achieved and hence we
encourage all our patients to take all treatment as
prescribed and to attend for regular follow-up checks.
In this way the development of serious complications of

chronic disease may be prevented.

All persons who have been found to have a chronic
disease have a chronic disease care plan developed.
This care plan outlines what medication the patient
should be taking and when they should return for

follow-up and laboratory testing if necessary.

4. Early referral

Sunrise Health Service has a programfor the Integrated
Management of Chronic Disease and in this program
those patients with certain types of chronic disease
and chronic disease complications are referred to
specialists early during the course of the illness. As
part of the integrated approach regular telephone
consultations are held between Sunrise clinical staff

and specialists at the referral centre.

5. Aims of the Chronic Disease Program

The aim of this program is to improve health outcomes
for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people with
chronic health conditions and to ensure improved

access to culturally appropriate primary health care.

The Chronic Disease program is undertaking a review
with the aim of looking for opportunities to improve the
outcomes of community members living with chronic
disease. The review is looking at the processes of how
we see, manage and recall patients in our communities.
The program is working closely with other programs to
maximise the benefits for the community members. In
particular, we are focussing on the implementation of
a Cardiac Rehabilitation program. This will support
community members who have had a cardiac event to
recover and restore their health to its optimum. This

will eventually be available in all communities.

The aim of this program is to improve health outcomes
for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people with
chronic health conditions and to ensure improved

access to culturally appropriate primary health care.
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Primary Health Care

The last 12 months at SHS has been a challenging
time for the remote health centres and the delivery of

primary health care.

The delivery of primary health care continues to be
challenged by the social determinants of health,
striving for continuous quality improvement and
difficulties in the recruitment and retainment of local
ancillary staff. In addition, the need to improve the
community engagement process so that the health

centres meet the requirements of each community.

Moving forward we remain focused on our primary
health care delivery including the improvement of
systems and processes within our health centres.
We have concentrated on recruitment of permanent
Remote Area Nurses and decreased the use of agency
Nurses. A further area of importance has been re-
engaging with and employing Trainee Aboriginal
Health Practitioners (TAHPs).

Recruitment of local staff across our health centres
continues to be a challenge. We have managed to
successfully fill all 25 Remote Area Nurse positions with
permanent RANS in 2020. We have employed an AHP
Clinical Educator which is a new position for SHS and
a very exciting one. Naomi Zaro is our AHP Clinical
Educator and she has been supporting the recruitment
of TAHPs into SHS along with the development and
upskilling of current AHPs. Naomi is also developing
a framework and training matrix for the TAHPs/AHPs.
She liaises closely with the Batchelor Institute, which is
the only RTO that trains AHPs in the NT. Naomi has
also established student AHP placement within SHS.

We are in the process of recruiting a Senior Clinical
Educator to support SHS’s clinical systems and
processes going forward across the organisation. This
will involve the upskilling of clinicians, clinical quality
improvement and education on primary health care.
This role along with Naomi’s role will strengthen

professional development for our remote clinicians,
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strengthen our clinical systems and continue with some
of the mentoring and training processes we are trialling

and of course contribute to The Sunrise Way.

We wish to thank Tracey Demaio for all her hard work
as Manager of Community Health for the Mataranka
and Jilkminggan health centres. Tracey has left SHS
and her replacement will start at the beginning of
September.

AGPAL Accreditation has been deferred to 2020.
Due to the COVID 19 situation SHS is yet to receive a
date for accreditation assessment, however our health
centre staff have been working hard on ensuring the
new RACGP standards are being met. This is also the
first time that SHS will be accredited against the 5th
edition standards, but we are confident that we will

meet the standards.

Clinical governance systems have strengthened over
the past 12 months. SHS holds monthly clinical case
reviews and weekly clinical link ups. The monthly health
centre manager meetings have recommenced as well
as 4-monthly health centre manager workshops.
Health centres conduct monthly reviews of NT KPlIs,
hold regular team meetings and morning briefs. There
are regular training sessions for clinicians and reviews

of clinical policies and procedures.

On a final note, this is my last report for SHS as | am
moving on from both SHS and the NT. Working for
SHS has certainly kept me on my toes through some
challenging times but none the less | have met some
amazing people, seen some brilliant systems and
processes being put in place, and learnt a lot over the
years. | am sure my replacement will bring some fresh

ideas, skills and knowledge to the workplace.
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Assets Management Unit

The Assets Management Unit (AMU) is an integral
part of the organisation’s operational effectiveness in
providing: housing, vehicles, Information Technology

(IT), medical equipment and logistics support.

The Assets Management team is always looking at how
they can better support their customers through the

implementation of new infrastructure or technology.

Some of the AMU’s key activities during 2019 - 2020

include:

+ Setup of new warehouse to accommodate
COVID-19 supplies

+ Manage and configure assets for staff in
quarantine

+ Support staff during COVID-19 restrictions

- Renegotiation, installation standardisation of
new multi-function device printers
Feasibility study with Telstra to determine
internet access for all accommodation
Completion of the relocation and installation
of old Ngukurr Clinic demountable to Crawford
Street
Staff accommodation furniture rationalisation
and upgrade
Construction completion of two single bedroom

units at Beswick
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+ Completion of secure vehicle garages — Lot 300
Ngukurr
- Completion of Windows 10 and Office 365 and
merge to cloud
+ Installation of Iridium satellite technology in all
ambulances
- Deployment of UHF portable radios to all
Health Centres
- Completion of ambulance fit-out and upgrades,
including new Ferno Mondial stretcher
- Rollout and installation of temptale devices to
manage cold chain of medications and vaccines
- Ongoing annual accommodation, remote
Health Centre and program audits
+  Annual bio-medical engineering service visits
- Managing personnel and patient travel with
logistic and transport of goods and services
+ Survey of vacant land at Ngukurr for the
proposed construction of four self-contained
single two-bedroom units for staff, funding
required.
Assets are continuing to build and strengthen our
partnerships with our external providers to ensure
we maintain a strong, robust, secure and medical

standards-compliant Health Service.




o
N
o
N
o
N
1
o
~—
o
N
+—
|
o
Q.
o
oz
@©
>
(@
C
<




The Status of Health in Our Region

Client contacts and episodes of care

‘ ‘Current’
‘ population
PN
Client
contacts
61,336

Episodes
‘ of care
47546
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Chronic conditions

Chronic Disease Conditions by Gender

Diabetes

Chronic kidney
disease
Asthma
Mental Health . Fermales
. Males
Cardiovascular disease
Rheumatic heart disease
Cerebrovascular accident
Hypertension
\ \ \ \ \ \ \ |
0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800
Number of cases
Chronic conditions - data
Chronic Conditions Recorded | Females | Males % of total
population

Diabetes 254 168 1%
Chronic Kidney Disease 359 320 18%
COPD 49 42 2%
Asthma 189 108 8%
Mental Health 177 137 8%
Cardiovascular Disease 76 101 5%
Rheumatic Heart Disease 122 71 5%
Cerebrovascular Accident 1 17 1%
Hypertension 220 240 12%

Total Chronic Conditions

**Patients may have more than 1 Chronic Condition Recorded**

Co-morbidities - Diagnosis Categories
per patient
Patient with Diabetes, Respiratory,

Cardiovascular, Musculoskeletal, Renal
Impairment &/or Mental Health

- with 2 categories
- with 1 category

- with 4+ categories
- with 4 categories

with 3 categories

Co-morbidities - data

Number of categories

Population

SHS Total ‘ 716 ‘ 323‘ 189 ‘ 92 ‘ 74 ‘ 1,394
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National Implementation Plan Goals

Immunised against influenza

(50+ years)

SHS (%)

5%
National IP

oal (%)
w20 | 68%

HbAIC recorded last 12 months
SHS (%)

83%

National IP

v 69%

Health Checks MBS 715
(0-4 years)

20% SHS (%)

National IP

69% G-

for2023
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Blood pressure recorded

(T2D)

830/0 SHS (%)

National IP
700/0 Goal (%)
for2023
Kidney function test
(T2D)
SHS (%)

‘ 82%

69% Goal (%)

for2023

Health Checks MBS 715

(25+ years)
5 40/o SHS (%)

National IP

740/0 Goal (%)

for2023




Summary of Service Data

National, state and regional results for reporting period ending December 2019
compared to most recent results for your service
Maternal and child health indicators

B National %

NT %
H Remote %
® Your service %
@ Your service % (denominator less than 20, therefore percentage should be treated w ith caution)
National
Data for your organisation | IP goal
Number Denominator 2023
(clients)  (clients) Per cent Per cent
Antenatal visit =2
ntenatal visi
(before 13 w eeks) e 46 67 69 60
44
76
Birthw eight recorded [ 64 64 100
65
MBS health check 2
ealth chec
(04 years) ([ ] 75 369 20 69
36
Child i isati Z
ild immunisation
(12 to < 24 months) ® 61 73 84 88
68
74
Child immunisation
(24 to < 36 months) ® 68 8 87 96
69
Child i isati o
ild immunisation
(60 to < 72 months) ® 76 83 92 96
63
11
Low birthweight [} 16 64 25
13
Current smoker 46
(clients who gave birth [ ] 39 65 60 37
in past 12 months) 53
I T T T T 1
0 20 40 60 80 100

Per cent of clients

low proportion is the preferred outcome for measures with red italicised labels.
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Preventative health indicators

B National %
NT %
B  Remote %
® Your service %
€ Your service % (denominator less than 20, therefore percentage should be treated w ith caution)

National
Data for your organisation | IP goal
Number Denominator 2023
(clients)  (clients) Per cent Per cent
Smoking status St
recorded [ 2,405 2,589 93
81
Alcohol consumption 62
recorded L4 1,827 2,589 71
62
MBS health check (25 >3
ealth check ( ° 1,025 1,895 54 63-74
years and over)
52
, 51
RIS!( factors for CVD ® 770 1,022 75
risk assessment
59
Cervical screening 22
(in the past 5 years) e 954 1,210 &
47
Immunised against [l
influenza (50 years and [ ] 355 542 65 64
over) 46
52
Current smoker (] 1,540 2,405 64 40
55
72
Overweight and obese o 746 1,441 52
69
AUDIT-C result 24 =3
(males) ) 354 771 46
58
- 42
AUDIT-C result 23 ° 254 1,055 2u
(females)
43
Absolute 35
cardiovascular risk - [ ] 247 735 34
High' 38
I T T T T 1
0 20 40 60 80 100

Per cent of clients

low proportion is the preferred outcome for measures with red italicised labels.
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Chronic disease management indicators

B National %
NT %
B Remote %
® Your service %
4

Your service % (denominator less than 20, therefore percentage should be treated w ith caution)
National

Data for your organisation | IP goal

Number Denominator 2023
= (clients)  (clients) Per cent Per cent
MBS GP Management P 358 488 73
Plan
Y4
MBS Team Care =
[ ] 342 488 70
Arrangement
54
66
Blood pressure
recorded 2 [ ] 403 488 83 70
HbA1c recorded (past 20 ° 313 488 64
6 months)
HbA1c recorded (past 67
([ J 407 488 83 69
12 months)
71
Kidney function test ait P 400 486 82 69
(type 2 diabetes) =
Kidney function test 63 ° 154 200 77
(CVD) o
Immunised against [N
influenza [ 170 256 66
(type 2 diabetes) 45
: ’ 44
Immunised against
influenza (COPD) 48 e 17 27 63

Blood pressure result [
<130/80mmHg [ 150 403 37
(type 2 diabetes) 42

HbA1c result <53

38
mmol/ml (type 2
diabetes)(past 6 L 102 313 33
months)
eGFRresult 80
260ml/min/1.73m? [ 335 391 86
(type 2 diabetes) 77
eGFRresult 77
260ml/min/1.73m? ° 127 154 82
(CVD) 75
ACRresult for males [JEE]
<2.5mg/mmol o 40 140 29
(type 2 diabetes) 4

ACR result for females [lZF]
<3.5mg/mmol (] 79 223 35
(type 2 diabetes) 42

0 20 40 60 80 100
Per cent of clients
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SUNRIYE HEALTH SERWVICE ABORIGINAL. CORPORATION
ABN: 28 TTA 211 542
Cirectors Raport '
Your beard of direcion aubmd tha finencial rapod on the Survisa Hazith Service: Aboriginal Corperation for the finencial
your ended 3 Juee 2030,

L

Exscuthee Memiban:

Anna Muria Lew Chabrpason

Peier Lindssy Degty Ghalmeson

Michalla Femel s Tranaum

Cifford Dumican Sacretary

DHrecter

The namasg of aach pamsan wha has besn B director during the year and b the date of this mport are:
List of dhnrston: Commumnity:
A Maria Laa - Chakparcon Banmnga
Palar Lindaxy - Deputy Chairpenon Bexwick f Wugular
Micheds Furrsd - Tréagurar Vgt & Oulwtwbions
Chffort Duncan - Saomalary Urapungs
Chyirtirma Curlin Euimarn § Curtstations
John Dahyeakar Waarnol (Badrmen)
Majnita Frial Werenbun
Jaoquin {doja) Huddketon fRasigned 15 Merch 2020) Minyam & Dutstatinna
Robin Rogas Hgukum & Cutetations
John O'Kaste Minyarr & Oybcimtions
Lomeine Bannet (Rosghed 23 Nevambar 2045) Baawick | Wogular
Timcthy Bados: S| nggan
Virginya Boan . Wataranks
Anthomy Pl Indapendent
Simon Cullly Indagendatil

Dirmctars have bean i offics sinoe tha 3t of the finan Gal year 10 tha deta of s tepot onkess otharwios staled.

Prinicipnd Activithe
Tha principsl scitvity of e Gorparition durng the francin] year wis ofismbon of baalth serdces for tha Benofit of
indkyancus paophe Gving in tha Ketherine Eacl Raglon.

Shprtficant Thang e

e Corparation's achiviize, frem 1 Febreary 2020 were impacied by the taest of Conranivs (COVID-18) and the
supsaquent bock dowr of the neglan by te NT Hosecutly tons, This prevaning wnd calapsd the monsitmant of staff and te
dedivery of sarices and tharsby increased ynaspencsd funde.

Mo ot significarn chungas in bha neture of the Corporaiion's aciivilas ocomes during tha yasr,

Cperating Resudt
The opwtatng profil for the year amounied to $452.852 2013 Profil of 5243,750).

Audiint's Indapandence Declarition
The head awdior's independencn declartion for the yasr anded 20 June 2030 hes been mcolved and can b found on pags
2 of the Meaactal rapart

Signad in accendatn with a reaolction of the Board of Daacinrs.

/
S @{:ﬁg/t Das: /] deyotNovember ;'3/”/‘10

CHUGOF Ay Fr En st Bete: /3 deyof Navember -’3/”/“
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Nexia
Edwards Marshall NT

Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 33%-50 of the Corporations {Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander} Act 2006 and Section 60-40 of the Austrafion Cheritles and Not-for-
profits Commission Act 2012 to the Directors of Sunrise Health $ervice Aboriginal Corporation

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2020, there
have baen:

i, Mo contraventions of the auditer independence requirements as set out in the Corperations {Aboriginal and
Torres Strail Isfander) Act 2006 and section 60-40 of the Australian Charities and Nat-for-prafits Commission
Act 2012 in refation to the audit; and

ii. Mo contraventions of any applicable code of professicnal conduct in relation o the sudit,

/Lﬂ (o

MWoel Clifford
Farther

Dated: 13 November 2020
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SUNRISE HEAL TH SERVIGE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
ABMN: 2B 778 213 532
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOMS AND QTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDES 30 JUNE 2020

Reven s
Commonwealth Govemimenl Smantg
NT Govarnmenl Grants

Less Unespended Govamment Grants - Net Movement
Tatg] Govammenl Grant Incoma

Orthar Non Governmant SVWE Ratated [neome
Migcallaneaus Income

Total Revenue and Othar Incame

Expanses
Clinical Service Coxls
Cepreclation Expansas
Empioyee Benafit Expensss
Agency Staff Conats
insumnce Expenzas
Cffice and Clinic Infrasbroctune Costs
Proparty Operating Cosli
Right of Lisa Asset Leage Costs
Repavs, Malntanance and Vehicks Funning Expenses
Senvice Dokvery Expensas
Staff Recruitment and Azggciated Ralocetion Costs
Training and Educalion Expanses
Other Administration Expenses

Total sxpanaas

Mt currant year profit / (fose)

Other comprahengive Incoms

ltems that will nat be reciassified subsequently to profit or Joss :
£ains on revaluation of bulldings and demauntahie’s for the

yEAr

Tetai Other Gomprehenehvs Incoms [Loss)

Totsl Comprehanalve Incoma {Losa) for the year

PROFIT { (LOES) ATTRIBUTABLE TO MEMBERS OF THE
CORPORATION

TOTAL COMPREHEHSIVE INCOME |LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE
TC MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATION

The accomparnying notes form part of these financial stataments.

Sunrise Health Services

Note

Za
zb

e
2d

13

820 2049
$ $
12433478 11,840,027
5,011,564 5,073,204
17 445,042 17,013,211
{1,548.078) -
18,785,564 17,013,231
4,062 781 1,845 (K5
2,175,326 _ 1.618,268
22,834,071 20ATE 505
338,760 520853
1,181,084 192,76
14,767 613 12,278,778
- 1,837 273
B24.157 T25.145
288,759 305,155
1,025 565 f,172,188
187 78BS =
556 536 1,136,023
4,027 204 631
B2E.534 241 515
448 727 166,419
1,665,850 14471
212301 418 20,232,738
457 452 243,188
452,852 243,766
452 852 241,758
452,662 243,764




SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABDRIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 25 778 213 532
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A% AT 30 JUNE 2030
Note 020 2019
$ H

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cagh Equivilents 3 2,859 8381 3,165,561
Trada and Cthar Receivables 4 82,660 A0, 554
inventaries 3 218118 125,374
Othar Assots -] 53,805 484 775
TOTAL CLRRENT ASSETS 3,564 454 1,826.704
HNOMN-CURRENT ASSETS

Proparty, Plant and Equipment 7 & 406, 158 4 326,780

Right of Use Aguels B 3875520 -
TOTAL NOM-CURRENT ASSETS 5,474,579 4,326,780
TOTAL ASSETS 13,026,133 1,153 484
LLAR A ITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trada and Cther Payables B 5319, 158 5251857

Laasn Lisbilities 10 814 974 -

Employes Pravigiohs 11 1,277,363 1,032 033
TOTAL CURRENT LIARILITIES TS511485 4,283 A9
HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Laase Liabilities 10 3152 9585 -

Empioyes Provisions 11 0357 .
TOTAL NON-CIIRRENT LIABLLITIES 3,192,302 -
TOTAL 11ARILITIES 10,703,087 6,231 590
NET ASSETS 2,322,248 1,869,594
EQLITY
Retained Earnings {Accumulated Lossas} A55.611 {57 1)
Reservas 12 1.968 635 1.966.636
TOTAL EQUITY 2,322,244 1,869,584

The accompanying notes. form part of these financial stalamants.
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SLNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
ARN: 26 TTS 215 582
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 10 JUNE 2020

Retained Ansal
i ! ]
i EEH mﬂ:ﬁ:m R;\I‘Illﬂtﬂﬂ Total Equity
Note Lvaasuear ) e
% $ 4

Batance at 1 July 2018 {340,807} 1,865 635 1,625 828
Comprehaniive Income:
Mol s Tor the year 243,756 - 241,768
her compiehansive income for the year 12 - = -
Total comprahanaive Incema (loss) attrihutable to Members
of the Larporation for the year 243,766 e 245,765
Balarics gt 38 June 2015 (97.041) 1,868 635 1,868 504
Balance at 1 July 2049 (97,041} 1,566,635 1,850,504
Application of :
AASE 16 Leases 1wl = . -
AASE 15 Reavenua from Contracte with Cuttomers

and AASE §058: Income of Nat-farProfit Enbites 1) - - .
Implemantation of AASE 16, AASE 15 and AASE 1054
1 July 3019 M = -
Comprehensive Income:
Net profit for ihe year 452,652 - 452,652
Other compraheraive income for tha ynar 12 = = "
Toial comprehansive income (lose) attibuisble to Members
of the Corporatinn far tha yesr 4§52 652 - 452 6502
Balance at 30 June 2020 255,611 1,958,835 2,322 2456

The accompamgdng noles form par of thesa fnancial statermnenis.
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABDRISINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 26 T78 213 582
STATENENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR YEAR ENDED 3 JUNE 2020

Nata

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Commuonwealh, Temtory, Locsl Governmant granty, Medicars

ang athar recsipis

Paymants to sUpphiers and employees

Intarast raneived

et cash provided by (used in} opprating activilies 18

LASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceads fram sale of property, plant and equipmaent
Payment for propery, slant and equipment

Mat cash {used Inj inveatng sctivilies

CASH FLOWS FROM FIMANCING ACTIWVTIES
Proceeds irom bomowings received

Payment of borowings

Paymuntes for lease Habiktise

et cash prvided by (used in) financing activiles

Met increase { (decresse) m canh held
£:ash and cash equivaients sl begirning of the finandlal year

Caoph ard cash equivalents at end of the financial year 4, 16

The accompanying notes form pact of these financial slataments,

020 1%

22201028 23,384,178
(20,617 467) (20,905,289}

1,764,358 ZAT8,TIR
£1,471.900) (B42.978)
(+,471,900) (642,979}
{598,338) =
{565,238} d
{105,880} 2235810
3,155 561 529,751
2259681 3,165 661
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CORFPORATHIN
ABN: 26 TTB #13 382
HOTES TQ THE HINANCIAL REPDRT FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2020

Tha financial atatemanis cover Sunlise Health Service Aborigingl Corparaiton as an individual enlity, incorparated and domiciled
in Australta. Sunfise Heakth Service Abgriginal Corparation I$ operating puriuant to the Coporabons (Abordginal and Tomes Sirait
Istanger Act 2006 (CATE] Act) and Ihe Avsiratan Chanlies snd Mol for Profits Commizsion Agl 2012 (ACNT Act).

The financial slatements waie guthonsed for Bswe on hovember 202 by tha Dirsctoes of the Corparalion,
Nota 4 Summary of 5gnificant Accournting Polkcies

Basis of Freparation

Sunriza Health Service Aboriginal Corporation (ACKC RDR) spplies Auatrafien Accornting $tandards — Reduced Disclesurs
Requirernants s sat oul in AASH 1053 Appdcalion of Tiers of Ausirafan Accaunbing Shandands .

The finencial stzlements me penesal purpess Mancial sletements that have been prapared in accordance wath Awvsiratisn
Accounling Standards — Reduced Disdoaure Requirements of the Australian Accoutding Stendards Board (AASB) the CATS!
Act 2006 and the Austrlgn Charities and MNolfov-prafts Cammission Act 2012, The Corperation is @ not-for-prafit sntity for
financlal repaning purposes under Susiralian Accounting Standarnds,

fuslralfan Accounling Slandards set ool accounting policies thal (he AASE hes concluded would resull in inancial statémens
comaining relevant and reliabla infeamation sbout ransectiens, events and conditions. Matensl accounling poficies adopted in tha
preparalion of these finansis! statements am preseniled below and have baan consistenlly spplied undass stated ctharwiza.

The financlal statemants, excep! for the cesh fow informetion, have been prepansd on an accruale basis and ara based an
historical posts, modified, where applicable, by the maasuremant at falr valpe of selected nom-coment assels, financial asssis amd
Mnands! Habilliies. The amounts presentad in the Nrancal gtalaments hawve boen rounded to the neangs! dodlas,

Ancounting Policles
{a} Revarue

The Corporation has applisd AASE 15 Revenue from Contricty wilh Customers (8458 15) and AASE 1058 (ncome of
MNolfor-Profit Entilles{AASE1058) using e cumulative effeclive mathod af inlially applying AASB15 and AASB1058 a3
An ad{ustmant 1o the opening balance of equity =t 1 July 2019, Theansfora, Ihe comparative infomation has not been
restated srd confinwes to be presented undar AASE 15 Ravenoe and AASE 1004: Conlribytions, The detxls gof
acsounting policies under AASE118 and AASHA004 are disclored coepavataly sinca they are different (rom those unhder
AASE 15 and AASE 1058 The impact of changes is disclosed in Nota 1 {is).

In the Current Yaar
Lontributed Aszets

The Corporalion recsives aasels from the govammant and gther paries for Ml of nominal cansigaraion in odar Lo
furlher its objeclives. These assala ars racognised in accorden ta with te recognition mequirements of offier applcabla
accounting Etandarde (AASE 8, AASHE 16, AASE 116 and AASE 133,

n inltial recognition of an azssl, the Corporalion reeognises refated amounts (being condributions by owners, laasa
liatAlty, financial inabruments, provisians, yenie of conlract llgbility anising from a contracd with @ customer).

The Corparation recognises income imm ediately in profit or (oss as Iha difference between initial carning amewnt of the
assel ang the related amounis,
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SUNRISE HEAL TH SERVICE ABGRIGINAL CORPCRATION
ABN: 36 776 21 562
NOTES T THE FINAKWCIAL REFDRT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 38 JUNE 2020

Summary of Signilcant Accounting Poiiches (Cont.)
Ravenue and Othar Income (Gont)

Operating Grants, Donations ang Beguesis

When the Corporation recsivas speraling grant revenus, donations or bequests, it assesses whathar the conlrect is
snlormable and has suMhcienty apscific perfommance obligaticss in Scoodanca with AAEB 15,

When bolh Ihese condilions ame satished, e Comporetion :
- uentifizs each parformance okfigation relaling to the grand
- recogniaes m conlrac] Bahiity for ila abligatioms under the agreement; and
- racognises fevenue s i satishes it performance obligations.
YWhen Iha contract is not anfarcesbie or doas el ke suticianly specific performance abligalions, the Corporation:

- recognises lhe aased received in actandance with lhe recognilion requirementa of olher apellcatde accounting
slandards  {AASD 8, AASE 116 srod AASE139)
- recognicses relatad amounts [being contribations by ownars, lasse liabifity, inancal Instruments, provisions,
revenue or contract liakility adsing from & contrac] wih a custmery; and
- recogniaes incoma lmmsdigtaly in profit of loss as Ihe difference between the intial carmying amount of Ihe aseet
ard the ratated smour,
if @ canbract lig bility is recogmised & a refated amaunl abova, the Coparallan recogntsts income in profit or loss whin of
a3 it satifies its obligathens under tha contract.

Caphal Grant

When lhe Corporalion receives a capital grani, & reconnises o Eability for the excess of the initial carrying amour of tha
financlal #sset recoived over 2y releted amounts (being contributions by owners, wase aby, finencial instrumanis,
prnvisione, nevenue or conirect ebilty ansing from a cantract with a cusiomed) recogrised under other Austratian
Actounting Standards.

The Corporation recognisas income in profit ar iose when or aa tha Corporation satlsfies its obiigalions under the lerms
of tha prani

intetrant Inconmes

Inhereal Incoms is pcognised using the effedive irderes! melhod.

Dividend Income
The Coporalion recogrises dividends in profil ar Ioas only whan Lhe ight to recaive pymen is exlabkshed.
Incoma From Sade of Gaods

The Corporation sells medical and phamagestical producls (o the general publlc. Revenue is recognlsed when control of
{ha products has transis msd L the cexlomer, For such transactions, this is when the producte gne dalivered to the
custonters, Discounts sre nol provided with the zaie of thasa itame.

& raceivable will be racognised whan the goods are delhared. The Comparation's rghl o consideration |2 geered
uncanditional al this tme as only e passage of lims is requined bafor payment of thal conslderation is dua. Thera is no
mignificant fngncing component because sales are made within a cradit term ef 3010 45 days,

Customars have Lhe right to relum products wilhin 60 days as stipulated in the contract terns, The Corporation further

hax a fight o recover the produc] when cusiameds sxerclss thalt ight of relum. In this instance an adjistment would be
mada o ravenie, a rafund Bakity meognised and on adjualment mads 1o (mventory and coal of sales,

The Coporsiion's historical experience with sales rdums show thet ey ars neg ligibée and conkidaned Lo b highly
Improbable. Ax such ng provislon for sake refunds @ recognised by the Corporation at the bme of sale of goods.
All ravenue is slated ne! af the smount of goods and sarvices tas
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVIGE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
ABHN: 256 TTB 213 542
NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Summary of $ignificant Accounting Policies {Cont.)
Fevenue and Othar Income (Cont.)

In the Comparativa Parled

Hon-recprocal gram revenue is seognised I profit or koas when the entity obtalne contred of Iha grenl and il is probatie
that tha economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity aid Ihe amount of the qranl can e meesured

eeiably,

if congmons ore atteched 16 The grant which musl be setiafied befors i is elighle to recave the confrbution, the
recog nition of the grant as evenue will be defamed until thote conditions are satlsfieg.

When grant revente is recaied wharsby the sty incsms an obligation lu deftver sconomic valus directly back Io the
cantributer, this 15 congldered a recivocal trensactioh and the gl revenun s racognised in the atatemerd of fingncial
position s a Nebifty until the semvice has been deliverad te the contrfbutor, otherwise the grant is recogniasd ss income

oh recepl

Sunfise Health Sarvice Aboriginal Corparalion recelves non-edpocal contriotions of aksels from the government and
alher parias for a 2ero or a nowinal valoe, These assels are recognised at fak yalue on the date ef acquishian in the
statement of fing neial position, with 2 comespondlng emount of income recognised in profit or loss.

Bonatlons and badqnests are recognised as ravehus whah necaived.,

Interesi revenue is recogrised using the affactive intermel mathad, which for floaling rats ngncial asseds is the rate
intarent in U instrumeant. Cividend reven e s recoqnised whan Ihe dght (0 receive & dividend has besn axtabits had.

Bavenue from the randaring of a sarvice i recagnisad upon the dallveny of the sence 1o the auglomars.
Al revenue is staled nel of Ihe smount of goods and services tas.

Fiwentorfen
Invaniores hald for sale comprise madla ond phanmaceytical products, Inventories are measured al the [dwey of cost

and nel realiastle valoe. [nwventories held for distribution are measured gt it adjusted, when sppicetle, for 2ny lpas of
servioe potental. Coste are azsigned an a fiest-in, frsi-gart basls.

Inventoies soquired al no cost, of for nominal consideration, Bre valued al the current replacemant cost oo Bl the dete of
gcquinitlon,

Froperty, Plant and Equipment
Each cess of proparty, pfanl end aquipmen tn camied al cost or fair vatve ox Indigaled, (ess, where applicable,

acrumuiated depredation and aty impaitenl losses.

Fraahold Property
Frashold tangd and Buikiings are shown al Lheir fir value based on periodic, bul 3 feast inennial, valuations by external

Ind ependent valers, e subaeguent depraciation or buldings.

In periada when Lha Freahsid Land and Buikiings are not subject to an indepandent valiudion, the Qimcors conducl
Direclors' valustions to snsurs the carmying am o for the Land and Bylidings is not matergly different lo the falr valis.

Incrazses in tha camying amaunt arsng on rovekeetion of Land and Buildings are recogrised in othar comprehansive
ieome and aocumutaled in the reveluation surplus in equity, Revalealion decrmasas thal oifset pravious increases of the
same clasx of assels shall be recognised in olfier comprahensiva income gnder the hesding of revaluation surplus. Al
alher fecraasas Are racognised in profi or k.

Amry accumyialed depreciation ai the dale of the mvalretion is elimineted againy the gross camying amaurt of the asssl
and Ihe nel gmigunt is restalad 1o the revelued amound of the asset

Freehold Land and Buildings ihat heve bean conirbubed &t no coat, gr for nominal cost, e intiglly recognised and
measured &t the fair value of tha sssal at the date it is soqLrined.
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABCRIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 25 T70 213 582
KOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL REFORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 10 JUNE 2020

Summary of Significani Accounting Palicies (ConlL.)
Praparty, Plant ang Equlpment (Gont.}

Plart and Equipment

Planl and squipmant zre measurad on the oozl basis and are therfore camiod al cosl beas acsturmulsted depraclation
and Ay sccumated impalmmeant loasas. [0 the avenl the camylng amawnt of planl and equipmant s greatsr than s
axtimated reoiverable smount, the corvng amounl & writhen down immedistely to it estimated recoverabbe 2mownl and
mnpainmert josses ane recognized aithar in profit or koss or 83 a revaluation decreass if the Impaimien] [osses rmlals toa
revaiued azsal. A formal esasssmant of racoverable amount s made when mpaimmant indicators ane present [refer o

Mate 1(f} for catails of impaimanl).

Planl and squipment that kavs been contriblied al no cost, or for nominal cost, ane valued and recognised pi the fahr
vitlue of the asset al the dals it is Scquined.

Depreclaton

The depreciabie amolnt of &Y fied assely, ineluding bwildings and cepitelized lease an=ely bul gxclpding Trechohd End,
is deprecipted on a sbaightdine basia over the as3el's useful ie to the entity commenelng fram the Sme the asset s held
ready for usa. Lessehald improvemenis are dapreclalad avar the shorder of aither the unesqpined period of the laase or

- the gstimated useful Buas of 1he improvenents,

The depreciation rates vsed for each cfass of depreciable atgaels ana;

Clags of Floed Asswt Depreciation Rate
Buildings 310%
Plant and equipment 10-40%,
Laggad plant and equipment 20-25%
Leaged matar vehicles 20-25%

The assels’ residual values and ysahd lives am reniewed, and sdiusted if appropdate, ot the end of each mpoiting
pericd.

Gaing and oases on disposals o delermined by comparing procesds with the camying amound, These gains of fosses
are recognised in profit of loee in lhe period in which [hay arse. When revalued Lesals ara soid, amounts inguded m the
ravaation surpius releting to thal easet are rensfemed Lo rateined exmings.

Laarag

The Corporation ax Lazass

Alincaption of a canfracd, the Caparallon assess IFika contad comtaing oF 5 3 @ass, Il there is 2 lease pregent, a righl-
oFuse psael ond @ coresponding lease Hebility s recognised by Ihe Cormpomation where the Comoration b g kesses,
However Bll cortracls that e classified as shart lerm leases {lease with romaimting kease e of 13 moniks of lass) ard
leages of iow valup assats are recogriesd as an cparaling FBage on a straight-Nne basis ovar the lem of [he leaze.

Initialhy the mase sbilty ia measyred at the presenl vedys of the leasa payments stll (o be paid 7 commencemant dgte.
The lease payments are discounied at (he wierest rate implic in the lease, IFNthis ke cannok ke readily detemined, 1he
Corporalion waes the incremenial bormewing rate.

| eage paymenty mcuded in the measurement of the lease Nabdity are a9 folows
- fixed leaem paymarts bexs any kease noanthies,
= vinable leaze payments that depand on an index ar rate, inftdadly maasured uaing the index of Rle al the
COMUT AN en] dale;
~  lha amount sxpeciad 1o be payabhe y the kesae under residual valua gusrantees:
-~ [he exercise prica of purchaze opbiona, if the lesses is reascnably cerlain to exercize Lha opdions;
= lease paymenls vndar extansion epllons, If Ihe lesses (3 regaomabdy ceraln to exersise Ihe options; and
- ra‘rm ents of penalthes for emingling the lease, H the lpage tem refiects the sxerclye of an option Lo terminale (he
EALE.
The nght-of-use assets comprise (e inftial measuremenl of the comesponding lease liabality a5 mentiohed above, ny

taaze paymanls mada &t or bafore e commencement date 85 will as any Initlel dires! costs, The subsequeni
measurginant of the ight-of-use essply o &t cost less sccumulslad deprsciation and wpakment losses.
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABCRIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 28 778 13 583
NGTES TC THE FINAMCIAL REPCRT FOR THE YEAR ENDEL 30 JUNE 2020

Summary af Signifcant Acequnting Polkiea [Cont.)

Leazex ICont)

Right-of-uen aEsals ar depiecisied over the beate term or usalul Kie of the undertying asset whichever is the shoriest.
Where a lease transfers ownership of the undertying asset or the cost of the dght-afpee assel reflects thal the '
Covporation amticipates lo axarcise & purchase option, the specific assel lv depreciated over he ygeful it of the
underiying asast

Concessionary Lexses

For lmagas that have sigrificanily bakwy market terms and condiions grincipalty to enable tha Coipontion to furlher its
abiectives (ormmonly Xhown a3 peppercom f concessinnary leasss], Ihe Comaralinn has adopted (he temporary ralisf
under AASH 2018-8 end messures tha right of use assets al cost ob Inikal recog nition.

Financial inatrmants

Initial Recognition snd Masswreiment

Financial esseis mnd financisl |labdities are recognised when the Corporetion becomes & party ko the conlmchual
provishons lo the Instrument, For krandal eseete, this i squivalant to the date thal the Corporgtion commits tsetf jo
eliher prchase of sull the asset {i.e. rade dete actounting is adepted),

Financia] inalruments [excepl for imde moslvablea] are nitlally measvred al fair vafue phis fransaction cosls, sucept
whare tha instrument is classifiod “at fals vabue thmugh profit of lcae”, in which case fransaclion cosle are expencad to
profit o ks inmedlately, WWhars available, quoted prices in an aclive markes? s usad 10 dalermine tair vale. noolher
gitcumsiances, valuation techniques ars adopted.

Trade raceivables are Inilially msasursd a1 the transaction price if the trade recaivabies do net conlaln significant
financing componanl or il the praciical expedient was epplied s specilind in ASSE 15 Revenus fom Coniracts with

Cogiommy
Classification and Subsequant Maasuremand

Fimancial fabiiiie s )
Financial limbilities are subssgquantty rmsasuned a:
- gmortised cosl; or
= fair value through profit or loss.
A fingacial liatdlty it ressurad al fair vafua through profit or foss if the knancial Egiliy ig;
8 contingent cansideration of an scquirer in 8 business. combinalion L which AASE J: Business Combinalions
apples,
~  hafd for tradng; o
- wnitislly designated as at falr valus throuph profil or loss.

All cikar Tnan cial kabiites are subsegeently measurad at gmortised cosl using the effectivi intarest method,

The ateclivs interast method |5 a melhod of cakoulating the smodised cost of a datd mstrument and of aliecaling inlerest
expensa over in profit or kas over Ihe reievant period.
The effective [nteves! rate is e internal rmte of return of the financial Assat or Babiity. Thet is, il in 1he rate thal exacily
dlscounts ihe estimated fiume cash fows throegh the axpaected tHe of the instrumeant to tha ned camying amaunt at initial
recognition.
A financlal kabllty is dekd for rading o 1 18:
- imcurred for the purpase of rapurchasdng oF repaying i the near larm;
- partal & portfalic where there B an goual patlem of shar-tarm profiktaking, ar
a derfvative financial instrument (except for @ derfvativa that is In a financial guarantee contract or a dedvaths thal
is in effective hedging refalionahip).
Ay gaing or lcases prising on changea in fair valug are recognisad in prafil or loss to the exient that they ars nod part of
a dagignaled hedginp relationship.
The change In fair vafue of the fnancial Nabilty eirbuiable 1o changes in the issuers oredi risk i taken 19 other
comprahansiva income and 18 ned aubsaguently reciagsied to prof or loss. Instead. itis transiemed to retain ed samings
upan derecogrition of the financid labllity.

ft taking the thangs In oredil figk in otter com prehensive INCOME enlar@es or crAAles AN aGCOUNting mismateh, then
these gaing of losses should be laken o prafit or foss rather than olhar comprahanaive income,

A Brancial Babdllly cannot e reclasaifiad,
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABQRIGINAL CORPORATICN
ABN: 26 770 213 BB2
HOTES TO THE FINANGLAL REPURT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUKE 2020

Summary af Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.]

Financial Instrumants {Cont.)
Finenciel exsels
Fmancial asseis 8re sudequently measured at:

- Amorligad cost; oF

= fair yelee Ihrough comprehensha inéoma; of

. fair velie through profit of loes.
Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria;

- the contractual cash fow charactensics of Lha financipl aasel; and

- the buginess medel for managing Ihe fmancial aszats,

A& firancial asksl thal meets the ollowing condilians is subsequenily measured at emortised cost:

- the finencial asse! is managed solely lo collect cantractual cash Mows; and
Ihe contracius terms within the financisl assst give risa (o cash Mows that ara solsly peyments of principal and
intaresl on the principal amount auslanding on spaciied dates.

A finangal esset thet meels the following conditions i subsequantly mesatrad ot othar com prahBnsiag intome;
- tha contractual kerme within the finsncial asael give fse to cagh Tiows that are sclely payments of prncipsl and
interest on the principal amount outatanding on spacifiad dales; and
the buminess model for maneging fhe fnencial asset compriaas both conlraciual cash Tovwes collection and the
selling of the finandial assst.
By defauk, 8l gther fnancial assats that ¢o not mest the measursman condilions of amodlsed cost and fair value
through other comprehanshes income are subsequently measured @t fair value through profit of loss.

The Corparation inillslly desigrates s fmanciel ingtrment as measuned at fair valoe through poofit of loss
- Kelminptes or significently reguces ¢ massurement of recog nition Incond lehcy (oftan refamed to 3 an
accounting rrismalch™ thet would otherwize arss from mersuting aaseds of liabifties or recognising the gaina and
loagas on Ihem on differan] bases;

- itis in sccardance with the documenlad sk management or investmanl sirategy and information seaut the
groupings is documented appropriataly, so the performanga of Ihe firandia liability thal i parl of a group of
firancial lahilites or financel assets can be menaged and eveluated congistanty on a Tair vatus basks, and
- It s 8 hykrid contract that conlalns &n embedded derivativa thal significanity modifles the cash fiows otherwise
e uired by the camrac].
The initial designation of Rnansial instrumenls to measurs 5 fair value through profl or fose is & ane-time opdlon on nitial
classification and is [rravocable until ke finsncial assat is derectgnised.

Equily ingtrummanis

At initial recogrition, 85 long a8 the eqully lsirument i nal ek for rgding o nol 8 comingen consideration recogrnisa:d
by an gcguiner in & bosinass combinetion to which AASE 3 applies, the Corporation made &n kreveeable gection lo
mBEEURR BTy GLbseguent changes in feir vake of (he aguity instrements in other comprebwnsive inoome, whila the
dividend revanue recsived on underying equity Inslrumenls nvestment wAf glill be recog nised in prefit or |oss.
Regularway purchases and salas of inanclal assels are recogrised and derecognised 41 setiement dale in accardance
with the Coporaion's estounting palicy.

Oerecogisition

Crerecognition refers to the removal of 2 previcusly recogrised financial azsat or finencial Eabilty from (he statement of
finmnclal position.

Cerecognition of inancial fiabiliies

A Nabllity is derscognlsad when it 15 stinguished {ie when the obligalion in the contrad B discharged, cancabad ar
sapiret), An exchange of an existing financkal linbility for B new one wilh substanliay modified terma, or a substantiel
modification to the terms of a financia) Eabilly, is trezted ks an extnguishment of the existing lipbiltty and recogrition of &
new financial Babiliy.

The difference betwesen the canying amount of the financisd |ebility derecogrised and the considersiion pakd and
payable, including any non-caxh assets transferred of liabifities pssumad, is recognised in profit of logy,
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABCRIGINAL CORPDRATION
ABN: 26 778 213 582
NOTES T THE FINANGCIAL REFCRT FOR THE YEAR EMDED: 30 JUME 2020

Summary of §lgnificant Accounting Policles {Cont)
Financlal [nstrumants [Cont.}

Ceracogition of financéal assels
A financiel aszel 14 serecognised when the halders cantractual rights (o is cash fows sxpires, or e assat is tanyfemed
in such m way (hal all tha risks and rewards of ownershlp sie subslentially anstared,

All the following criteria pead [n ba satisfisd for the dececogniiion of a Anancial asset

- tha righl fo mosive ciesh fows irom the sset has expired or been Iranmfamad,
= all sk gnd rewarda af ownarship of the asset have been substontiglly ransferced; and
- tha Corparation no kenger controls the assel (ie has po practical abilily to make unialar) decision to sell the assel
lo & third party}.
On derecognition of s financial aszat messured al amortsed cost, the diffarghes Bstwesn The esset's camying amourd
and the sum of tha consideratian recaived and reesivable & recognised in profil o l0ss,

Qn derecognition of a debl instrumen! classifed as fair value through olher comprehanaivs income, Ihe cumutative gain
or koss previously accumulaled in the investment ravalualion raserve s reclassifed lo peafit or loss.

On demecogiilion of an imesiment in &qulty which lhe Corporation elected o clazsify (mder fair valoe through oiher
comprehensive income. the cumulativa gain of lsss praviousty accumulated in tha bvestmens revaluation resense i not
reclasslfed o profit or loss, &t is transfamad to relelned samings.

Impalrment
The Corporetion moogrises @ foas aflowance for sxpeched cradh loases on:

- finanoal agsats That ere measursd ol anortived cosl or fair value throug h other comprasheraig incame,

- lease recarvables,

- contracl sspels (20 Amount dua fram cusSiomans under coratructlon coniiects);

- |nan commitinenly that sre pot mazsured »t fair value through profit or loss: and

- fingncizl guarantes contracis Ihat are nal measurad o falr value through pradfit or kes.
Loss allowance |6 nol recog nised for

- fAnancis] essety measured al fair valwe through prelt ar loas; of

- pOuity inslumaents maasuned at fair valus through other comprehensive income.
Expacied credit losses are the probability-weighted estimala of credil fesses oves the ewpeched life of & financlal
instrument. A credi loss ia the diference bebwaan afl contraclual cash fiows that ame dus and &l cazh Mows axpecied 1o
ba recaivad, all discounted al the ariginal affactives intenest mate of the fnands [Ramrment,

The Corporation usas Ihe felowing epaosches (o impairment, as applicable undar AASE &, Flnancial insirumeants:
- tha genaral epprosch;
- Ihe simpifiad approach;
- e purchaaed or origineted credil-im paired approach; ard
= ow credit risk operational simpdification.

Goneral approach
Undes the general apaioach, at mach repadding panod, the Corporation askesses whether the finandal inglhpmendy s

credit-mpaiad, and:
- il the credi] risk of the financlel mstument hes moreased signiicantty 5ince knitial recognitien, the Coporstion
messures tha loss sliowsnoe of the financial instrumenta at an amou il squal ie the lifetime expecied credit foasas,
&nd
- Ifthem is np significant increase in credil risk zince Initial recognition, the Corporation measures Ihe loss alowancs
for thet finarclal inatrumant 5t an amount equal o 1 2-month expeciad cradil lossas,

Simpfied approach
The simpiified approach doss not require acking of changes in oredit sk ot every neparing pericd, but instesd requires
Lhe: recognitian of fine scpected cradil iess al gll imes,

This approash v applicebie b
- trede receivabies; and
= hmase receivabbes,
In meaatring the expected credit loss, 4 provision malrx for trade recefvabies ia uzad 1aking into cansideration varigus

dets to get to an expected credil foss (e diversity of ita coslomes base, appropriate groupings of its histoncal loss
EXDETHNCGE, BC).
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABQRKSINAL CORPORATION
ABNM: 26 TTA 215 542
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFCRT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUME 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Polickes [Cent.}
Financial mstruments [Cont.}

Furctmsed or orginated credit-mpaintd approach

Far financial asaeta thal are considamd 1o be credri-mpalred (nol on acquisition or ongirations), the Corporation
Mm&asures uny change in its lfstime exsecled credit loss as the diference betwsan the azss's gross camying amaounl
&md the present value of estimeted fture cash Mows discountsd 8t the financal assel's griginal effective interaxt rate.

Ay adjusimant [ recognissd in profit or legs a6 an impaimmanl gain gr lgas.

Evidence of credit impairment mcludes:
- significanl finarcial difficulty of the iaauer ar bovrower;
- @ brazch of coniract (ag defauk or pasl dus syam);
- alender has granked bo the betrower 4 concaasion, dua e Iha bomower's financind dfcalty, that the lender would
ot otharwies conakdm,
= ther fikedhood that Lhe barowsr will enfer bankmnuptcy o other linancial rea rganization; and
- the dissppearsnce of gn acive market for (ke Mnancial assed bacauas of Tancial difficufiesg,

Low cradi ek pperatans srrpiificalion spormech
If B fmancial asset is detenmined tc have low credil risk at the initial reperting date, the Corporation assumes that the
credit rigk has nol increazed signlficantly since intial racogniton and, acoondingly, can continue (o recognise a ooy

gliewance of 12-momh sxpectad creadil bas

Iy oecher {o make spch g deteaniration Iha! Ibe financiel asael has Kw credil sk, the Corporation applies #s imemal
crodil fisk ratings or cihar mathodsogine uing a globally comparabis dafindion of low credl risk,
A Minancial aeset is conuidared to have (o credh rek ik

= Imere in @ bowe rlok OF dedault by the Dorrawer;

- lhe bomower haa a strong capaciy to meed (s comractual cash Mow oblig pions o the near lem, and

T ativerse changas N economic and busineas condilons |n fhe longer tamm may, bl wilt not necessarity, redues the

phility of the borrcwer to fulfil its contractual cash flow obégations,

A financlal assat is not consldared 1o carmy kow cnedil dek manely due to edetence of collaters], or bacasues o bomwe
has o bowes ik of defauk than the risk inherant in the financial assets, or ralaiive 1o the cred riek of the judsdiction n
which il operates.

Recognitlon of sxpectad credit Inases in fnenclal statamernis
At each reporling dale, the Corporatien recognises The movemant in the loss allowance a an impaiment gain or ks in
the sietemant of profil or leas and olher comprehensive inoome.

The carying armount of finencial assety measured ol emortised cosl indudes (he luss zllowance relating to thal saset,

Agsets megsured Bt feir vilve through olhar comprehensive income are recognised a4l fair valwe with changes i fair
value recognised in other comprehensive Incoma. The amouni in celpticn 1o change in credit sk 18 tranetemed from
other comprehenyive ngoarms 1o proft or foss et every repoding pariod,

For [nancial ssseis that are unrecognisad (ag bean comm tments vel io be drawn, Mnanclal geerantees), a proviglon for
lass alowance |3 craghed In the slglemanl of fnancis| poaitlon to recognise the (o3 allowance.

impalmmant of Azsais

Althe end of ach reporing pariod, e Comoralnen reviews the carying armounls of its langible and intengible assats to
et rrr s whigthar thera I8 any Ingication Ihal those assebs have been impairad.  such znindicatlon exdgts, the
recovershle amount of the asset, being the higher of tha asset's fair value kess costs of deposal and value inuse, 2
compaed Lo the asset'a carmying amaunl. Any excess of the asset's Lamying amaunt ower s recoverable amount iz
racognised in proft or DEs.

Where the assels ars not held primanly for their abllty 1o geaarate nat cash inflows — thal [e_ they are spacialised agsals
hald far conlinging wae of their sorvice capacity —{he recoverable amounts are expected Io be matenisly the sama s fair

valse,

Where i is not poagible to estim ate the recoverable amount af an individus! aazat, Ihe Corpocathon eskmetes the
recoverabie amounl of the cash-generating unil to which the assat belongs.

Whem animpairmen! [oss on a revalued individual asaet {s identiftad, this | recogrised agalnst ihe ravaluation sumlys
in reapec] of lhe aame class of aaxsf o Lha sent hel be impaimaent ioss does rol soiteed the amount in the
revaluatian surplua for thal class of asset,
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABDORIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 28 773 213 632
HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL REFORY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 202¢

Summary af Signiflgant Accournting Policies [Cont)

Ernployes Benwfits

Shoyt-tarm em ployes banafity

Frovision & made fof the Corporation’s obligetion for shert-lem amployes benefits. Short-lerm employes benefits are
benefts [other than termination benafis) Ihat ere sxpeciad to be satiled wholly within 2 moniha after tha and of The
annuel reporing period in which e gmpoysss render ha related warvica, incheding wages, salanas and gick leave.
Shom-tem emplopes banehts ore massured ai the fundiscounlad) smounts axpected 1o 52 pald wheh the obligation (s

mettied.

The Cotporation's clikigalivns for short-term amplayee benafila such as wages, salares and sick leave are recognised as
u part of cument irede snd other payabies (n the 3tatemant of fnanslal pesiion.

Onhar loh gtetm emmployee banafits

The Corporgtion clasifles employees long service lesve and annual leave anttigmeants & sther long-term employes
benefits a3 they are not expected lo be ssited whalty within 12 monihs sfler the end of the annual reparing period in
which tha amploysss rander the rsiated sendos. Provirion is made for the Coporation’s obligation for giher long-temm
arnployas banefits, which are measursd al Ihe pressnt value of the expected futitre paymEnls 1o be msde lo smployess.
Expected fulure paymemls mcomporste anticipated fulure waga and salary levels, durations of service and smployes
departures, and are discounted Bl rates datermined by referance lo market ylekds al tha end of the reporting Detiod on
governmant bonds thal hawve matisity detes thet approsdmete the terma of the obligationa. Any rameasurements for
changss in assumptions of obligetions for olher fang term employee benefits am recogrised in profil or loss in the
perinds in which e changes ocouy.

The Comaslion's onligatians for langlenm empdoyee benefils ane presented 86 non-carrent kabRies in ity statemant of
financial position, excaat where the Corporation does not hava an uncenditional right 10 defer settienent for at laasl
twelve months afler the reperling duete, in which case the obligalions am pressoleg a3 current liabilties.

Ratirsmant banefit ohligaticns

Dafinad conlrbution superannuaton banefits

All mnployees of the Corporation receive defined contribulion superannuation antifaments, for which ihe Corporation
pays the fived superannualion guaranies contribition (curentty §.5% of the empioyss’s ordinany everage salary) 1o Lthe
amployes's superannualion fund of chocs. All confributions In respect of employees’ dafined contribullen ertilements
are recognised a5 an sxpanss when they become payable, The Comporalion’s cbligation with respedd (o employeas”
dedined contributlon entillerments is Imied Lo its obligation for any unpaid auperannuation gQuannbes contriutions st the
end of the reporting period. All obligelions for unpaid supsrannualton guarantes contribuikons are measured ot the
{undiseounted) amounts expected 10 be paid when the obligatlon 5 setiled and am presented as curment labdifles in the
Comorations stalement of finengial podilion,

Gash and Caah Equivalonts
Cosh and cash equivalenls include cash on hand, deposits hetd at-call with banks, other shor-term highly liquid
inestrments wilh origing| maturitias of thraa monthe or kese, and bank cvandestts, Bank evendrafla are shown within short-

tarm borrowangs i curment liakilties on the satement of fingncial position,

Trade and Othar Debliom

Trade and cther debtors includa amounts due from disnls for taas and goods arkd Sa/vices provided, from denors and
any otstanding grent receipts. Reoakvables expedied to be collectad within 12 menthe of the and of Ihe feporling pericd
ar clagaified as cuenl essals, All other recedvables ane clansified as non-current assats.

Acoounts recervable are [nitlalty recognised al fair vilue and subsequentty measured at amorieed cosl using the
effechive interestmethod, lesa sy provizion for mezsuremant. Rafar (o Note 1{a} for further dlacussions on the

determination of Impairm ent losses.

fontract Asgets

Contracl @ssets are recognlsed whan tha Corporation has tansfemed poods of services to the tustomer and or
compleled required performance obligations, but has yat to exiabliish unconditheral rights to conatderation. Contrac
azeal= are irmaked 8¢ financial azsats for mpainment purposes.
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SUNRISE HEALTH BEERVICE ABORKSINAL CORPORATICN
ABM: 2678 213 502
NOTES TC THE FINANGLAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Policks {Cont.)

Goods and Sarvices Tax (G5T)
Ravenyss, sxpansss and assets gre recognieed nel of the amoun of GET, except where the amount of GST mcumed |5
ol reeneridle frvn The Australion Taxation Ofice (ATO).

Recelvables and payables are stoed inclushe of the smount of GST mecaivable o pavatie. The net amount of GST
racoverabie from, of payable to, the ATO ks incidag wilh other receivables of paystles in the statement of financial

poslton.
Cash Nows are presented oh a ross basis. The S5T companenats of cash fiows ariming from inveating or financing
attivites which Bre recoverdole from, or payeble to, the ATO are prasanded a8 operaling cash flows included in recalpls
fram customers o7 paymrants to suppliars.

Incoma Tax
ta provision iar incame lx hey been raised as the entity is exempt from incorne ax under Div S0 of the fncome Tax

Aszessmend Act 1887,

Wtanpgiblies

Software ig initiafy recognised gt cosL [t has a finite Fie and is camied ot cosl bess any securnidited amortisetion wod
impairment lnssex. Scflware has an astimated usaful He of between one and three yoars. K ls assessed ahnually for
impalrmant

Trade artd Othar Payables

Trede snd other payables represent tha Fabilities for goods and sanvices received by the Corpanition during the reparing
pericd that remzin unpaid al the end af the rporting parod. Trade payables are mcogrikied at their imnsacion price, The
balance is recogrized s a cument lebllity with e emeounts normety paid within 20 deys of racegnitian of the Rakbility.

Contrael Lakbites

Conlract liabiies represent tha Comoralion's cbligation to Iransfer goods of sarvices 1o 8 customer or complede maquirsd
pedomance obligations wnd am recognised when a customer peys consideditioh, of when tha Comorgtion recognises a
rocchvabla to teflect ite unconditional ight to consideralion (whichavar la sazdisr), beforo the Comporetion hes tranafermed
the goods or services to the cuslomer and or comphelad requiced perfomance obligatlons,

Provisions

Provigans e recognised whan the Corparation has & legal or comytruchive obligatwn, Bx 4 resulk of past swents, for
which it i prooebla thal an outhow of sconormic benstis will meuk and that cutfiow can be relisbly measwed, Frovisions
racogrised represand the best eslfmate of the amounts required lo setila the obligatien at tha std of epoding periad.

Comparative Figures
Where required by Acgounting Slandards comperaive figures have been adjusted o confeem with changes in
preanntation for the cuiment financial yasr,
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABORKG MAL CORPORATION
AEN: M TTE 13842
WOTES TD THE FIMANCIAL REFDRT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 0 JUNE z010

Hete 1 Summary of Significant Accaunting Policles (Cont.)

1] Geiteal Accounting Extimates and Judgenmsnts
The Direclom evalste sstimoles and judgements incorporatsd into the Snancie] sistemants based on historical
krosadge and best gvailable cumend information. Extimates azsume a reasonable expeciation of futume events and s
bagad on current trends and econ omit data, oblalred bolh axtemnally snd within tha Comeration,

ey Evlimutes

! Valation of bulldings and damountalys's

The buikdinga and demountaé's ware independently valued al 30 Jura 2017 by Heoon Todd White (Modhem Terdon)
Pty Lid. The valuation was Dased on the falr value lesc cost of duspasgls. The valpations reaulttsd fn g evakation
incremant of $710,533 baing recognised Tor the yaar anded 34 June 2017 {refer to Nate 77(1) and 18).

Al 30 June 2020, the Directors have petformed a Directors’ valuation on e buildIngs and demavntablas. The Directors
hava reviowed the key assumplions adopted by the valuars in 2017 ard do nol believe lhare has fxen a signibeant
thange in the assumptions 8l 30 Jure 2020. Tha Dinectols therefors belimwe, Lhat based on the expeclad wtility of Ihe
gxsets, the camying smounl of the buildings end demountable’s raflecls the fair vala ot 30 June 2020.

(i} Useful Iives of property, plant and squlpment
Ag dastzibed in Note 1(c), the Corporatian revisws tha estimeted usefd ives of propady, plant and equipmant al the ang
of e&th reporting period, based on the sxpected uiility of tha azaets.

{ill} Impainmants Ger el
The Comporetion assesses mpairnent sl the end of each reporing pasiod by evalualing condilions and events spacifc io

tha Comporation thet may be indicative of impaiment ifggere.,

ivipairrent of ieasehold improvements srd plant snd equipmeat
The Corporaiion assesses impaimeant of lsasahald improverers and plani and equiprmen) ot ead reporting daks iy
evalugling condiions spacific to e Corporalion and 1o the parficular axsat thal meny lesd 1o impaiment. i an inggirment
trigger exisis, Ihe raecverabls gmount of the assel 18 datermined. This invoboes fair valse less comls (o sell oF value-in-
uss calculalions, which incorporate a number of key estimatas and esaumptone. There was no provision for impaimerd
of kasahold impravemenis gnd plant and squipmeant gt 30 June 2020 (3019 $Nil).

impadenrent of sccounts racelvahla

The provision for impairmani of racaivables assessmant requires 2 degree of estimation and judgemenl The lwel of
provision is assassed by laking [mo account the recen) sakes axperance, the sgeing of recalvahes, histoncal collrction
rated gnd specHic knowledpe of the indlvdyual delters’ hirancled position. Pravision for mpalrmend of receivables al 30
Juhe 2020 amounted to 518 600 (2019: $8,000).

Hey Judgments

i) Performranee Obligations Under AASE 156

To lgentily a paformance obligation untger AASE 15, the promise must be sufficienty spachic 1o be able Lo determine
when \hve obhgation |z sstiafed. Menagament exercyes judgement to detarmine whethar the promisa is sufliently by
taking inte account any conditions specified in the erangemant, axplicl o mpllct, regarding the promisad ¢ ooda or
sarvicas. In maklng this assessment, managemean] includes the nature 7 typa, coat rafue. quantity and the perod of
transfer reladed (o the goods or servicas prof]

{il) Coronavirus (COVID-19} Pandem|c

Judgemeant has been exarcsed in congiderng the impacts that tha Soranavirns (COVID-16) prndemic has had, or may
have, on the Comporation based on known information. This conskleraton exlends to lhe natura of e grpducts and
sarvices offered, customen, supply chaln, slafing and geographis regions in which the Composation eperales. Dther than
28 addredeed in specific notes, tharo docs not clrantly 5 ppear to be either any aigniflcant mpact vpon the flencel
statements or any significan Encatainkes with respect lo evants or condiians which may impacl Ihe Compantion
unfavoiably as al the reporting date or subsequently as g reslt of the Coronavirug (COVID-18) pandam iz,
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABURMSINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 25 T74 243 582
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFDRT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Summary of Signlficant Acgounting Poliches (Cant.)

Falr Valus af Azzata and LlphMthen
The Comparalicn measunes some of e assets ot fair value on elthet o hecl Hng of non-recuTring basis, depanding on Lhe
requiremants of the appliceble Accounting Standard.

Fait value i the price the Sorporation would recaive to el an assst or would have to pay (o ransfar a liabiity In en
orderfy {le ynforced) Irannaclion between indapendent, knowledgeatle and willing markel paricipants o the
measurement date.

“Fair vahie™ |5 the prce the Corporation would reesive Lo ael an sseet or woukf have fo pay fo transfer & labllily 0 ans
orderty (& unforced) imnsmctions between independent, krowledgeabke and wilfing maskst padicipants at the
measuramant fala.

As fair valpe 8 a marketbasad measure, the closesl equivakanl obsarvable market gridng information is used {o
determine fait valos. Adjustments (o matket values may be made baving regacd to the charactanstics of the speciic
asset o ligbilty. The fair values of assets and Gablitiss that are nat traded in an acive marke! arme deternined ualng one
or moe valuztion techniques. Thess valration lechrigues maximise, 1o tho etant possbile, the use of obaercable
rrarcet data

To ihe extert possiie, market information i extracted from the principsl market for he assat or llabllity G.e. the market
with the grestest volume and levsl of dctivity for Ihe essal or Hability). In the absence of such a markel, market
information & mxdrpctnd from Hha mosl advantageous marke! availebla 1o the snlity al #w end of the reparding parod i.e,
the market (hal maxenioes the recelpls from the sale of the ssset or minkmises (he payments made 1o Iransfer the
Rekility, after taking into accounl tranaaction coals and [ranspor £oxls). -

For nen-hinancisl assets, the (i valve measurement alse lakes into account @ marke! participant's ability to e the
asxel [n s highast and best use of (o sell B o anciher market participan] that would oae the agsel inits highesl and best
e,

The fair valus of liakifies and the Comoration's own equity instruments (if amy] may ba valsed, where there is no
ohsaryades markat orice In relation he the tansfer of such finandal Bstrument, by referenca to obagrvabls maroet
mforrnetion where such matruments are held a3 pszets. Whane this informalion is nol avallapie, olher veluation
technigues are sdopted and whars gignilicant, ane datailad in the respecive note ta the fnancial statementa.

Economic Dependence )

The Comoralion is depandent on e Commonwsatth Departenis of Prime Minister and Cabinel, and the NT
(3 oeerrmant Tor the majodity of ity mvenye i aperate i programs and buginess, At the date of this repar, the Board of
Dieclars his no reascn 1o believe that the sbove govemmaent departments will at conlinue to suppar the Corporation.
The operalions and future sucoszs of the Comoralion is dependent upon the continiesd supporl end funding by the
gevemment bodias and tha achisvemen of operating Swluges end positive aparating cash flows.

Adoptton of New and Revised Accounting Standards

The Corparation has imphemanted thres new Accounting Standards that are epplicable for the: currant reporing pericd,
AASE 15 Revenus from Contracts with Customars, AASE 1058; Income of Mol-far-Profit Entiiles and AASE 15; Leasas
have baen epplied yaing Ihe cumulalive sfeciive method; that |5, Dy racognising the cumulative affect of inttially mpplying
AASE 15, AASE 1058 and AASE 16 a5 an adjustinent to the opening batance of equity as al 1 July 2098, Tharafors, the
o pa rative information has nol been resitated and continues to be mported Undar AASE 118: Ravenue, gnd AASE 11T
Leazes and AASE 1004; Contributions. Alse to aote i Felation 1o AASE 16 & thal the Comaration applied the temporary
relief for pappercorn keases ynder AASE 2018-8 fo masburr the righl of vxe axsels a1 cost on initial recognition.

The Corporation has adopted AASE 16 Leases relrespectivaly wih a date of initial applicaton of 1.July 2015, A= a
rasuk, the Gorporation has changed ils accounting palicy for (seses recognition a5 delaied in this note. In accordance
with AASE 16 the comparatives for the 2013 meporting period heve nol been restaled &nd the cumalativa effect of inlilally
apphing AASE 16 recognised al 1 July 2019
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABORKSINAL CORFPDRATION
ABNM: 28 778 213 582
MCTES TO THE FINANCLAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Summary of Significsnt Accounting Policles {Coni.]
Adaption of New and Revisad Accounting Standarda [Cont.)
Inltial Application of AASE 16 : Laavay

The Corporation has recognised a lease llablity end sghl-of-wse asset for zll leases {with tha axception of short tarm and
loww value I asesirecoqnised &5 opaieting azes undar AASE11T; Leases whare the Coporalion is the teasan. The
lense Hahdilies are measured et the gresent valus of (he e sning laase payments. The Corporstion’s weighted sverage
incremental borowing rate an 1 July 20158 applied o the lease ligbilties gnd used (0 discount the laass paymants was

4 85%.

The right af uss assals lor propery, plaot and equipment we e measured 81 their camying amodnks as if AASE 18:
Laasns hoo baen 3pplied since the commencemant date, bad discounted using the Cororailon’s weighted average
inzrementyl oomowing rate an 1 July 2016

The righl of vas ascets for tha remaining Kases wer mesured and moognised in the statemenl of financial poallon as
at1 July 2019 by taking inte consideration the laase lishility, prepald znd accrsed fease payments pravioualy recognised
A% ol 1 Juty 2018 {ihal sre related (o the laaas),

The fallowing practcal sxpedients hava basn usad by Ihe Corporalion n spphying AASE 15 for the first lime:

- lor a porfolio of keases thal heve reasonably similar characlerisiics, a singla di2counl rale has been appled;

- leasas tha! have remalning loase tarme of less than 12 months a3 st 1 .duly 2015 have been accounied for In the
Eame Wiy an &ho benm kases;

- the use of hindsight be gelarming leate tarms on comrasty thal have oplions fo extend o tarminale;

- apphying AASE 14 to tesses previcusly identified as leases under AASE 117 Leazes and intarpcelation 4
Datmmmining whidhsr an arangament conte Ing 4 kease withoul reassessing whether they are, or contain, a legss ot
Ine fale of i nitie] spplication; amd

- not applying AASE 15 to leases previousty ot identified o containing a lease undsr AASH 117 and Intarprataticn
4.

The falltwany sunmary indicates the impad of the implam entation of AASE 16 on 1 July 2018 :
- raclassification of Froperty, Plant and Equipmeanit to Righ! of Lise assat on 1 July 2010; and
- tectassification of idertified Operating Loasa Commitmants 1o dght of use assets and 1o lesse lablities as al 1 July
2019, by measuring the preaent vahu of thair laase payments sl Io be peid,

Carrylng Corrying A it
Amount under
Cabegory atder Reciesstication 16
AASH 217
Right of Use
n 4,954,093 4 BG4 003
Liaze Liakslit
e 5 4,854,008 4,854,083
Cparaling Lease
5, -4, 854,
Commiments 5788813 254,007 -4 854,003

The Corparation's weighted avensge ingemantal banowing rate on 1 July 201% appiled to the lease labiiten was 4,85%.
Tha gHferece betwesn the undiscounted amount of operating lease commitmants @t 30 June 2015 of §5,788,018 and
the digeounted operniing lease commitmants as at 1 July 2018 of $4,858 083 was §934 726, which i9 due to discounting
lhe operaling lsasa commiments a1 the Corparalion’s incrementlal borrowing rete.
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABGRIGINAL CORPORATION
AEN: 26 TTE 241 582
NOTES TG THE FRANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Summary of Signiflcant Account!ng Pollcias {Cont.)

Adoplion of Mew and Revisad Accounting Standards (Cont.)

[nital Applicetion of AASH 15 and AASHE 1058

Tha Corporation has applied AASE 15 | Ravenus from Gontracts with Customers ahd AASE 1058 Income of Not-Tar-
Prefil Entities usdng the cumulalive effective mathod of initialy apphing AASD 15 and AASE 1058 as an adjustment to
Ibe epening batance of equity &t 1 July 2019_ Therefore the comparative information has ot been restatod and
conlinues to be preannted under AASE 118 Revenuw end AASE 1004 Conlnbullans,

Tha Corpaoralion has alectad to appiy AASE 1058 rereepectively only 1o cordizes that are not completed contracts al the
date of initial application,

Tha Dirsciors heve assessed hat (e spplication of AASE 15 ang AAER 1658 has had minimal sfiec! on the sccounting
and repoding practices of the Corporalion and & comesponding msignticant impact on Ihe Corporation’s operaling
resulls for the year ended 30 June 2020. Thars & no malerdal differance In the resulls of tha Corporation batwean
applying A458 15 pnd AASE 1054 and AASE 118, Mo edjustments were deemed necessary to the epening batance of
anuity al 1 July 2018

A classification chenge occumred which resulted in Grards Recehed in Advances now being clasaifiad a3 Contract Liabldty
in line with wording used in AASE 15

The table below provides delaliz of Ihe significant chengas and quantiative impact of these changes on |nibal date i
application § Jufy 2079

R — e

Finandal . Impect oF AASE

Pusitiarn 15 | AASE 1958
CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Unexpentded 3,574,363 -3,574,303 =
Gramts
Contract s . 1,574,303
Uizhifitles e

Mew Accounting Standards and Interpraiations Mot el Mandatory Or Early Adopted

Australian Accountling Standams and [nlarprelations thal have retetly been istued of emended but are not yal
mandalgry, have nol Been sarly adopted by tha Corponitisn for the annual reporting pericd anded 30 Jupa 2020, The
Corpodation has nol vet assessed the impect of these new or amended Accounting Slandards and Intergretations.

{Sping Concemn
The financis! repert e besn prapared on & going ConCEm ASIUMption.

The curren] year's reyults shows an increzss in net axsats resubting from a net profll of §452 652 (2015; an ncresse and
profit of §243,766). The statement of financial position raperts cumenl sases of $3.554 455 (2018 53,526, 7iM) snd
curmrent liabaties of $7,511,495 (2049 36 263 8005, As 3! 30 June 2020, the curant Esbiilizs are greatar than the curtenl
asanls by $3,857 04 (2018: 52,457,186},

The Crporation's casnliows siotement regonts & decrease in cashfiows of §305,880 (2019: incraase of $2,235810).

The fulure operations of (he Comporations are gapendernt upoh funding from the Commonwealth Department of Prime
Minster ang Cobinet ang the Modhem Temitory Govermment for 1he majority of i3 revenue 1o operals s programs and
buginess. Al the dale of thiz repodt, the Bosrd of Direclors has no meason 1o believe het (he above government
dnpariments will rel cantinge to suppor the Comoration. Nohsithatanding, th Comoralien receives major funding from
Iha Cepartrmanl of Haakth gnd the Comaorgtion has sucosssiully precuned Runding for the nexd threa years unll 32 June,
2023,
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EUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CCRPORATION
ABN: 28 773 211 582
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2019

Mota 2 Expanses

{a)

i)

(c)

id}

(el

Nots 3

Depreciation and Simrostastion:
- Buddings and demountablea
- Fumiture and equipment
- Motor vehicles
Right of usa assats

Total depraciniicn and amortisation

Emplkoyae Bonofits Expenses:
—  Stalf ramuneration expefses

— Conlrbutions to defined contribulion superannuation funds

Total smployee banefits axpensy

Proparty Oparating Costs :
— Praparly rental expanses
—  (ther property SXpansgs

Right of Liss Axsat Laane Conte:
— interasi axpense on leace apidites

Total Hght of uze szswt feace wXpaiias

Raepairs, Muintenance and Vehicle Running Expesnses :
-  Mplor vehicle lease aXpOnNSEs
— [ther Motor vehicle expenses

Othar Administrative Expsnses
— Accountancy and finance costs
- Commynigalion axpansss
«— Community consudlation cost
— Conzytancy expansa
— IT Behvices
— Muelnge costs
—  Staff Accommodation sosts
— Slaff lravel costs

Total other ad miniwtrative sxpensss

Cash and Cash Equivalants
CURRENT

Cash at bank
Cash an hand

Totsl Cosh on hand and at bank

Sunrise Health Services

2020 2019
¥ 3

153,507 143 BS6
57,414 16,086
91,600 31,864

878,573 -
1,781,094 182,716
11,785,477 1,447,616
1,012,136 839,162
44,787 613 12,278,776
353,240 555,071
676,326 §17,128
1,029,586 1172169
187,785 -
107 785 .
318,478 732.356
338,060 4D4,567
655,536 171365823
78,714 59,722
647,423 477 801
3741 240
00880 145,463
268 291 190,182
184,003 164,348
27,808 12.084
258,010 476,201
1,585,850 1,447 431

Nots 2020 201%

5 $

2,859,581 1,164,545
. 615
16(a), 17 2,858,581 3,165,561




SUNRISE HEALTH EERWVICE ABCRIGINAL CORPDRATION
ABM: 26 TTB 213 542 :
NOTES T{ THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED M JUNE 201%

Motz & Trade and Gihar Recalvablas

Hole 5

Mats &

CLURRENT
Recaivables ;

Trade recaivablag
Lags -Proviskan for impaiment of receivaibies

Total Trade Recalvablan

Other Recalvables :

Other receivaklas

Tatal tithar raceivables

Total currant trade and other receivublos

The Carporation's normal credil term s 30 days.
e collateral ks hald over rade and cther receivabhes.

4{a] Provision for doubtful delyts
hMovamant in the provigion far doubtful debte |s ey Tollkows:

Provislen for doubtful dehts as gt { July 2018
— Charge for year
— Written off

Provision for doubiful dabis ax at 1 July 2019

— Charge for year
— Wyritten off

Provislon far doubitful debts »s ot 20 Juns 2020

Inventorias

CURRENT

Invantary on hand at cost
Totl Inverntory

Dther Assuts
GURRENT

Fropayments

Taial other sseets

i

2020 2019
$ §
40,795 49,063

(18,5000 (9.000)
21,195 40,0863
61,485 g31
61,455 831
B2,660 40,994
{8,000}
(3,000}
{9.000)
{10,600)
19,6007
08 201y
L] ]
218,118 125.374
218,118 126,374
2020 2018
$ $
263,995 454,775
383,595 494,775
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABCRIGINAL CORPCGRATION
ARMN: 26 773 11 583
HOTES TG THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 1C JUNE 2019

Mot ¥ FProparty, Plant and Equlpmeant Mots ik 2Ma
$ §
BuHdings and demauntable
— Independent valuabion In 2047 3,951,584 3,561,588
— Al cogl 1,215,368 893328
5178 966 4,054 925
Less Accumulaled depreciatian (434 125) (280,618}
Totat Bulddinge nnd Demountabls's £ 742 B41 - 3,774,308
FURMITURE, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture, Plant and egquipmant:
At cost 883,169 FE3 504
Lese Accumulated deprecialion {306.571) {338,257
495 495 24 427
Motor vehicles:
AL Cosl 421,287 201,04
Less Accumulated depreciation 1164 477) {72 088
256,820 128,045
Total Fumniture, Plant srd Equipmant & Vehlclax 753,318 552472
Total proparty, plant snd squipmant 5405 158 4,225 730

Tha buidings and demouniable's located i the East Amham Raglonal Council Ares, wens revaluad by an independsnt
valuar, Mr Wil Johnson, AAPI, Carifled Practising Yalrer and Director of Herron Todd White{NT) Pty Lid, ax at 30 June
2017, Tha veluation af tha buidinge and demountable's s based on the fair valie of each dontifiable proparly. The
revaluad amount of buikdings and demountabie’s ks §2, 385 000 and $1,221 000 respectvely (refer fo Nota 18 far delails

on revaations),

At 30 Jume 2020, the Directors hava parformesd a Diracion’ walvalion an the builings and demountabie’'s, The Directors
kave reviewsd lhe key assumpbions sdopted by the valuers in 2017 end do nol belevs thers has bean a significant
chanpge in the assumplions at 30 June 2020, The Cireclors therefore believe, thal basad on the expedted wtlity of the

B3&els, the camying amounl of the buldings and demountable's feflects the fair value b 30 June 2020,

Movamenhs in Carying Amsunia

Movement in the camying amounts for each class of proparty, plant and equipment betwsan the baginning end the and of

the current fnencial year:

Furnitur,
Buikdings & Plant end Motar

Demountsble's Equipment  Wehickes Tolal
: 5 5 $
Carrying amount at 1 July 2019 3.774,208 424,427 125045 42326780
Revaluationg (heementa) = - = =
Addilions at cost 1,122,040 129485 220375 1471900
Dlsposals - - . -
Depresiation sxpense {(152.507)  (57.4%4)  (@1500) (302520
Carrying amount at 30 June 2034 4,742 B41 496408  256R20 5496155
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SUNRISE HEAL TH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 26 773 243 G682
MNOTES TO THE FINANGIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 201 %

Mote 3 Ripht of Use Assets MNote 020 e

(@] AASE 18 Reiated Amounin Recognised in
the Balance Sheat

Right of Uss Azasis

Leazad Property 2,753,830 -

Lasa Accumulatad depraciation (211.007) -
1672823 -

Leasad Maolor Wahicles 2870263 -

Leas Accumulated depraciation (557,566 -
20026557 -

Tatal Right of Uss Asseis 3,875,520 -

The Corporation's lease portiolio includes tuikings, plant and equipment and motor vehicles, Thesa leases
have an averaga of 10 yeara a& their laase bm.

Thee gpticn be extend or amyinata ere conleined in paversl of the property Mases of the Comaration. There
Wwars no extanaion oplions for squipment or motor vahiciss. Thess clayses provide the Corpotation the
opporunitas to ntahage kases in order to align with its strategiss. All of the extenion of terminabion
opbons are only exarcianble by the Carporation. The extansion or tefmination opliona which were prabatle
Io e axercied have bean incirded in the cakculation of the Right of Use Asset

The Corporabion has entaned inlo a 20 year concessionary leasa with the NT Governmant for s office
Movements {n Camying Amounis
Leased

e Motar Tolak
Prepet  vehicies

$ 3 -
Carrylng amount st July 2048 5 - -
Recognined on initial application of AASE 16 2183530 2 670,281 4 854 083
Agditions at cost S 5 -
Dapraciation axpanss (291,007)  (B67.5E6) (ETB 573
Carsying amount at 30 Jure 2020 1972823 2002697 3975520
{b} AASE 15 Redated Amounis Recognised In
the Statengint of ProTh and Loss
2020
§
Dapraciation chargs related to night of Use a65els CEL AT
Interest expansa on lzass Habiities 1B7 768
DB, 358
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CORPCRATION
ABN: 26 770 212 £a2
- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPDRT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 201%

Mote 8 Trade and Other Payahlex Mot
CURRENT

Trada payables

Employse payrol iahittes payabla

Ciher payables

5ST payable {net amount of GST payable}
Unexpendad grant funding

Contract Liabilites - grand funded programmes

Total Trade and Dthar Payablos

{s} Financial liabHities at amortigad coet ary classifivd av trade and other
payahbinE,
Trado and other payvablos:

— Tolal Curant

— Tolai Non Cuner!

Totai trads and othar payabiss
Less:
— Unaxpandad funding
— . Contract Lishilties - grant funded programmes

Financial lizbifitins ax trade and other pryables 17

(b} Contract Habifdes - movement in arnounts :

Balance at lhe beginning of the yoar

Reclassified from Defamed Income £ Unexpended grantks
on initial application of AASE 15

Additions: Granls for which perdormance obligations will anly ba anbafed
in subsequent years .

Expandad ' Granls goquitted or ulilised during the yas

Clozing batance

Sunrise Health Services

2020 2019
$ $
1,209,458 B3R, 196
320,825 256,035
442 813 117,840
271,538 A5 475
- 3,574,303
3,074,323 s
5318158 5,254 857
5,319,158 5,251,857
5318158 5,251 857
- (1.574,303)
{3,074,32%)
2,244 335 1,677 554
2020
3
3.574,303
(48 B S8D)

3,074,327
T ——wr gy



SUMNRISE HEAL TH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 28 778 213 582
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL REPGRT FGR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 019

Note 10 Lease Linbiities

Note 11

CURRENT
Lenses - properting
Lesses - malor vehicas

NON-CURRENT
Leasss - propeies
Legaes - motar vahicles

Total Leass Liabilitien

Th laace abilites are seoured by the undedying esacts gnd arm
eubject to the lerms of their individuel lease sgreaments.

Emplcyse Proviskons

CURRENT

Provision for smployee benefits: sick leave
Pravision far smployee banakis: annual keave
Provizsion far employas banafits: (ong senvios leove
Provision for emplayea benefits: Til
NON-CLURRENT

Provision for amplovees benefits: long senice keave

Total provisions for smployss henefits
Analysis of twotal provisions:
Opening balance at 1 July 2019

Additional provisions raised during the year
Ampurte uzad during the year

Halwnce st 30 June 2023

Note 2020 2019
L] ¥
20 048 .
G444, 528 -
14,8574 .
1,711,879 -
1 421,318 s
3,152,995 -
it 4 DET H88 -
Mok 2020 M9
% ]
§1.500 835,500
788,225 558,065
303, JEE 356,793
A eve AL 678
1,277,363 1032 033
38,397 .
39,387 -
1,246,760 1,032 033
Total
1,032.033
2737

-

1,316,760
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Note 11

Mote 12

Hote 13

Hota 14

SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE ABCRIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 26 TT3 213 582
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 32 JUNE 2016

Employes Pravisigns (Cont)

Brovision For Empicyas Banafita .
Employes provisions represente amounts accrued for annual leave, sick leavs, TIL and fong service leave.

The currant portion for this provision incledes the total amount secmuad far annual leave anlibements and the amount
sccrued for long service leave entiements thal have vested due to employees having completed the required period of
sarvice. Bapad o0 past axpariance, the Corporation dees not expect the full ameunt of annual lpave or kng samvice leave
balancas dassified as cumant liahililies to bo setded within the nexdl 12 months, Howewer, thage ameounts musl be
classified 85 cumant liabiites since the Camoration does not have an uhconditional right 1o defer the sattiement of these
amounis in the evanl emplayess wish to vse their pave e ntliemenl

The r+current partion for this pravision inchuges ansunts accrsed for long zervice leave eniilemeants thet bave nol yet
wested i refalion to thtse amployess wha hava nel yet compiated the required pasiad of eervice,

In cateulating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long sarvics leave, the probability of lang sefvice leave
being taken (s bagsed upon historical date. The measuremant and recagnition criteria for employea benefits have been

discussad in Male 1(g).

Resarves Nota 2020 201%
H ]
Azzst revaluation reservas
— Balanca at the beginning of inancial year 1 July 2018 1.966.635 1,966 B35
—=~ Revaluation incremant during the year e =
=~ Balanca al the eng of financial year 30 June 2020 R 1 EnEas
The gaeet mvaluation resarve records the revaluatian of nemn-cumrenl assats.
Gupitsl and Laaging Commimants el 1L 2iH8
§ §
(2} Qperating Loase Cammitments
Rental cormitrmants © shor farm and Iow value assals
Payabhe — minimum leaze prymenis
— ngk laler than 1 year - 345,025
— [aker than 1 yaar bul not Jaler than fiva years . 1,541,845
— fater than five years - BE4 142
Total Oparating Lease Commitments - : Anez 0z

[nduded in 2098 was the rental of the Comporation’s offica premisas, staff accommodation facilities and car
flaal Thess rentsd commitments were recognisad a8 inase liabiities as at 1 July 2818 in accordance with
AASE 16. Tha Corparation also cantinues 1o pay & monthly rental for & number of other property sites,
There is no fed mantal terrm period for thase gdes ang ae such they have bean Irmatad as shart erm
[mases. The rentsl expense for these aho term lezges was $353 240 in 2020,

(k] Gapttal Expand ifume Commitmanis

The Comporation has capilal axpandibite commitimenls a5 &t 30 Juna 2020 of $588, 161 which has been
funded through spscife grant programes (2018501

Cantingent Labfities antd Contingent Azsatx

The Board is not aware of any contingent kabilites or assats a5 at 30 June 2020 (2016:8NilL
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SUNRISE HEAL TH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 26 770 213 592
KDTES TD THE FINANCIAL REFORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2019

Mote 15 Events After the Reporting Period

The impacdl of the Comnavings (COVID-18} panderic is engolng and while it hae bean finangiglly positve
for/ had Kt financial impact on the Corporation up to 30 June 2020, it is not pracicable o estimats the
potental inpack, positive ar nagabva, after the reporing date. The situatan is repidly developing and is
dapangdent on measures imposed by the Australian Government ang other countrias, euch as maintening
socipl distancing requiraments. quarantine, travel reetietions snd any sconomic simulus that may be
provided,

Mo athes rmathar oF dicurmstance hes arisan sinca 30 June 2020 that hes significently efected, or may
significantly alfec! the Corporation's operations, e resuls of thosa operaiiong, or the Corpatelion's state
of affaira in future finangial yaars.

Noie Té Ganh Fiow Information Note 020 0139

{a} Reconcilistion of cash and caah gquivalents to Satemeant of Cash Flovwe :

Cash on hand and at bank 3 2 855,651 1,165,561
Total canh s& atated in the Siatemant of cash flows 2 B58,681 3,165 551

(b] Reconcliiation of Caah Flow from Cperating Activities with Current Yaar

Profit iLoas)

Prediti{Loss) for the cument year 452,552 243,786
Hohscash flown:

Depreciation and amodisaiion sspanca 1,181,084 192 T8
Less (Froft) on dapoeal of assabe - =
Interest expense on leaze labilities {187, 786) -

Changes in asaets s liabilitiva:

{increase)fdecreasa in trads end glher meoevables (41,655) 73451
{Increaselfdecraags in invanlzies ¢n hand {92,744} 34.011)
(Ingreaselidaceass n othar coment assels 106,780 {3E7.221)
Incranzaidacease) in acoounts payable and other payables a7, 304 2,818,174
Incraasafidacraasa) in employes provisions 2B4 727 {40, 986)
Met cozh provided by operating acthvitias 1,764,358 2875789
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SUNRISE HEAL TH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 26 TTH 213 582
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL REFORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 10 JUNE 2019

Note 17 Financial Risk Managsment

Tha Comporation’s financial Instruments conslst mainty of deposits with banks, (ol money market instuments, shoar tem
ard lang-term investments, accaunt receb/ables and payables, contract asasts, lmasa liabdites and conlract iabifities.

*he totale for each category of finandal ingtruments, measured in accordance with AASB § ex detalied in the sceounting
palicies to these financial statements, are ag follows:

Nota 202D 2018
Flnancial aapets % %
Fingncial assels at amorltsed cost:
Caszh on hamnd 3 2,654,681 3185 564
Trede and other recaivablee L 82 560 40 G004 .
Total fmancial aseste 2 42 341 3 206,555
Financisl lisbilitlas
Firancial liabitias at amotisad cosl
Trade and ather payables ) 2.244 835 1.677.554
Loase {isbiites 10 4 D57 588 -
Total finencls! labihiss 6,312,804 1,877,554

Refer lo Note 15 for detafled disclosures regarding the Fair valua measurements of Ihe Comoration’s financial assets.

Mote 11 Fair Values Measurements

Tie Corporation moasures and recogrises tha follewinp assets and labiliies at fair value on a ecurming basfs after initial
recogmticn:

- financial 2agalz at fair value through prafit or foss,

- financial azsals vl fair vale through ather comprehenaive ircome; and

- freahcld [and ard buildings.

Tha Corporation does not subsequently meazura any labiliies at fair vehue on & recutming bagie, or any aseate o ligbilities on # non-
racyming basis.,

‘The fair valuog of financial assets and financial Habiftiza are presentad in the fallawing table and can be comparad to bheir canying
values 43 presentad in the stelament of Gnancial pomition,
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SUNRISE HEAL TH SERVICE ABORKSINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 25 7T 213 582

KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE VEAR ENDED 30 JUINE 2018

Mote 13 Fair Values Neanurements (Cont}

2020 18
Camying Carrying

Notse  Amsaunk FalrWalue Ampunt  Fair Valus
—_——— $ 5 5 $
Financial agaets
Ceah an hand &nd &l bank a1y z.Baqee 28536681 a.165,561 3,165 561
Trade amd cthar moaivablas A7 2660 82860 40,994 400, 504
Tolal financial agsats 2842 M1 2 547 341 3,206,555 3,206 555
Financial lish Ditlas
Teade and sthar payablas .17 2244835 2,244 425 1,677 554 1,677.554
Lease labiities 10,77 4087863 4 D67, 958 =2 -
Tatal financial liebiites B.312,804 6,312 504 1677554 1877554

(i

{ii)
{iiid

Cesh on hand, accounts receivable and other deblors, contrect assata and sccaunts peysble and ether payables and
contract lmbilties ame short-lerm inslruments in nalure whose camyfng valus ig equivalant b Fair value. Trade and ather
payables exciude amounts prowded for annual leave, which is utside the scope of AASE B.

For investmants in llsted shares, the fair values have been detemmined based on closing quoted bid gices at the and of
the reperting pariod.

Loans recoivablo ang lease Habilities fair values ame assessed on an @nnusl basis by Mansgement and the Commities
Mambers . Current avallabde data is meed in ageessing thair carrving and fafr valugs.

A fair value measyrement asswmes that the ransaction o sol the assat or tran sfer B linbility takes olace either;
{a) intha princpad market For the assel or Rzbiliby; or
(B} inthe absence of @ princpe! market, in the most advantageous marke! for the sssat or Babilty "

Nan - Finpnclal gasete

Total non- financial assats

i

220 1%
Carrying Carrying .
Motsx  Amournt Fair Valup Amount Fair Value
Buikings & Demguntable’s 7 4742 841 4,742 841 3774308 2386000
4.742. 541 4.742.841 3,774,308 2,386,000

Tre fair value of the buildings and demountabie’s wern determined hy an independent valuation performad as at 30 June
2017, Kr. Will [ohnson AAF], Certified Practising Vaker and Oirector of - Hamon Togd White Ply Lig. The fair vaiuas
usad by the valuer are based on the fair market values for sach Wentifiable property. The critical assumption adoptad by
the Indepandent Valrer is that ™ A falr vatue measurement apsumes (hat the assat or liabilty is exchanged In an ordary
ransaciion betwean marksl participanls o sell e assel or transfer the lisbidty al the messurement dale under coment
merkat conditions",

A 30 Jyna 2020, the Directors have perfonmed a Directars’ valuation on the buildings and demountable’s. The Cirectors
have reviewsd the key assumptions sdopted by the valvers in 2017 and do not befieve there has been 3 significant
thange in the assumplions at 30 June 2020. The Cimcorg therefore befieve, thel based on the expecied ulility of the
azsalz, their gxating condition and tha cost of replacemant of thaze aesals, that the cermying amount of the buildings and
demountable's refiects tha fair value at 20 June 2020,
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERYICE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
AEN: 36773 213 642
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED M JUNE 2019

Hote 12 Kay Mansgement Ramunemtion 2020 019
$ $
The totals of mmuneration paid to KMP of the Corporation during the year
are as foliows

Wages @80, 347 OF8 BER
Superannyation 8, Bag 83 626
Ohher entifements 133,402 58,4485
Total Key Management Ramunaration 1,082,718 1,136,788

Hotw 20 Other Ralxted Party Disclosure

Other related parties includa close famlly members of key managemant parsonnel ang entites that ara cantrojed of fointly

contrgled by those key management parsonnel or indlvidual or colleciively with their dose famlly members.

Tranaactions petween related parties are or commanid tanms and conditfons no mam favourabke than those available to

ather parties unless otheraiss stated,

There were ng other rlated party ransactions in 2020 (2013; SNl

Note 21 Corporatern Detalis
Tha Regiatared Office of the corpomtion i
Sunrige Heallh Sarvice Aboriging Corporation
Pandamus Flaza
25 Firsl Slreet . Kathering NT 3854
The Princips place of busineas
Sunnse Heaklh Servioe Aborkgine! Corporation

Pandamus Plaze
25 Firgl Sireet , Katherine NT G850
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AUNRAIIE HEALTH SERVICE ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
ABN: 28 TT8 213 52
OIRECTIRE DEGLARATICN

Tha Direclore of Sunriss Haalth Sanscs Abotgingd Coportcen , decdare that in the Cimciers' opinion |

Tha finuncial statemants and noian, 2 sel out on peges 3 to 31, we I accordance wih the Corparationy
. [Aboriginal and Tomag Shad iandort Aok 2008 (CATEE Act ?Mﬁjmdwﬂt!h& Austraien Chains and Mod-for

Frofity Commipsion Aot 2012 (ACNC Achwrd ;

{n) cEmply with Australian Accounting Stendends - Reducad Disclosurs Asuingrments; wnd

{b) give & e and fair view o e fmencel poston of the Conponstion s it 30 Jume 2020, ite parformencs and
caxad Mo fof W yeear angind on thal dabe.

In the dirbotons” opiion then are rmgaomabie grounds i baleve thal the Corporsion will ba able o pay ¥ debie as
mnd whvgn they decorne doa and payable, -

This daglargton i made in aocardanca with a resolution of the Baard of Dinclors and with subsechion 30, 156(d) of
tha Ausirafien Chanties and Mol-forpmafily Commizsion Regweiion 2013,

s O iy N i
;3 Ngrgmbar 2020

MOQ

Dutect ;3 Movember 2020
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Nexia
Edwards MarshallNT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE
ABORIGINAL CORPORATION

Opirian

We have audited the financial report of Sunrise Health Service Aboriginal Corgoration {the Corparation} which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 lune 2020, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
notes to the financial statements, incleding a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors

declaration,

in our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Corporation is in accordance with the requirements of

Civision 60 of the Austrelign Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Corperations (Aboriginel and

Torres Strait fslander) Act 2006, including:

L} giving a true and fair view of the Corporation's finrancial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended; and

Lii] complying with Australian Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the Corporations
fAbariginal and Torres Strait istonder) Act 2006 angd Austrafian Charities and Net-for-profits Commission
Regudotions 2013

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our
report. We are independent of the Carporation and its subsidiaries in accordance with the auditor independence
reguirernents of the Austrolian Chorities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Corparations {Abarigipal
cnd Torres Stroit (sfander) Act 2006, and the independence requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Fthics for Professiona! Accourtonts {the Code) that are relevant 1o cor audit of
the financial report. We have alse fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far aur opirian.

Materfal Uncertalnty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1iw) "Going Concern” to the financial repart, which indicates that the Corporation
reported total comprehensive income of $452,652 [2019: total comprehensive income of 5243,766). The statement
of financial position reparts turrent assets of 53,554,454 [201%: 53,826,704} and current liabilities of $7,511,495
{2019: 56,283,890). As at 30 June 2020, the current liabilities of the Corporation were greater than its current assets
by 53,957,041 (201%9: 52,457,186). These events or corditions, along with the other matters stated in Note 1jw)
"Going Concern” and Note 1{t) "Economic Dependence” indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Corparation’s ability to continue as 3 going concern,

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE
ABORIGINAL CORPORATION {CONTINUED}

Directors’ Responstbility for the Financial Report

The Directors of Sunrise Health Service Aboriginal Corporation are respansible for the preparation of the financial
report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australtan Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure
Reguirements, the Corporgtions {Aborigine! and Torres 5troit Isfander) Act 2006 and Austrafion Charities ang Not-
for-prafits Commission Act 2012, This responsibility includes such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to ensble the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view 5o that it is free from
materizl misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial report, the Girectors are responsible for assessing the Corporation’s 2bility to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Girectors either intend to liquidate the Corparation of to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financdial Report

Qur ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an auditor's repeort that includes aur opinign. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
Australian Auditing Standards will always detect @ material misstatement whean it exists. Misstatemenis can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the sudit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemant of the financal report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perferm audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to pravide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusian, forgery, intentional amissions,
misrepresentations, ar the override of mternal control.

r  Obtain an understanding of internal conirg! relevant to the audit in order 1o design zudit procedures that are
appropriaie in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an apinion on the effactivenass of the
Corporatian’s internal congrol.

s Evaluate the appropriaieness of accounting palictes used and the reasanab!EnESS of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

= Conclede on the appropriatensss of the Directars” use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence abtained, whether a material vncertainty exists related to events ar conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Corparation’s ability to continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's raport to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Qur conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cauvse
the Corporation Lo cease to continue as 3 going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial repnrt including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and avents in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE
ABORIGINAL CORPORATION {CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the pfanned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiancies in internal contro! that we identify during our audit.

hiors. Clionsd, W!W T

Wexia Edwards Marshall NT
Chartered Accountants

dotdlr

Nael Cliffard
Fartner

Dated; 13 November 2020
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SUNRISE HEALTH SERVICE
ABORIGINAL CORFORATION
A T R e O A ETE

Street address
Pandanus Plaza

Level 1, 25 First Street
Katherine NT 0851

Postal address
PO Box 1696
Katherine NT 0851

Contact details
Phone: (08) 89719 500
Fax: (08) 89712511

Email: general@sunrise.org.au



